
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
 

Monday, 28th March, 2011 at 6.00pm 
in Council Chamber  Council Offices  
Market Street  Newbury 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of despatch of Agenda:  Friday, 18 March 2011 
 
For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents 
referred to in Part I reports, please contact Moira Fraser on (01635) 519045 
e-mail: mfraser@westberks.gov.uk 
 
Further information and Minutes are also available on the Council’s website at 
www.westberks.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack



Agenda - Governance and Audit Committee to be held on Monday, 28 March 2011 
(continued) 

 

 
 

 
To: Councillors Jeff Beck (Chairman), Paul Bryant, David Holtby, Tony Linden, 

Julian Swift-Hook (Vice-Chairman), Tony Vickers and Quentin Webb 

Substitutes: Councillors Brian Bedwell, Adrian Edwards and Keith Woodhams 
  
 

Agenda 
 

Part I Page No. 
 
1.   Apologies  
 To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any). 

 
 

2.   Minutes 1 - 2 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this 

Committee held on 14 February 2011. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 To receive any Declarations of Interest from Members. 

 
 

4.   International Financial Report Standards - Accounting Policies and 
Prior Year Comparators (GA2212) 
 

3 - 28 

5.   Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 2011-12 (GAC1905) 
 

29 - 46 

6.   Internal Audit Plan 2011-14 (GAC2268) 
 

47 - 82 

7.   Review of Internal Audit (GAC2269) 
 

83 - 96 

 
Andy Day 
Head of Policy and Communication 
 

West Berkshire Council is committed to equality of opportunity. We will treat everyone with 
respect, regardless of race, disability, gender, age, religion or sexual orientation. 

If you require this information in a different format, such as audio tape, or in 
another language, please ask an English speaker to contact Moira Fraser on 

telephone (01635) 519045, who will be able to help. 
 



DRAFT 
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
MONDAY, 14 FEBRUARY 2011 

 
Councillors Present: Jeff Beck (Chairman), Adrian Edwards (Substitute) (In place of Paul 
Bryant), David Holtby, Tony Linden, Julian Swift-Hook (Vice-Chairman) and Quentin Webb 
 

Also Present: Andy Day (Head of Policy and Communication) and Ian Priestley (Assurance 
Manager - Finance), Moira Fraser (Democratic Services Manager) 
 

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Paul Bryant 
 

 
PART I 
 

31. Minutes 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 15th November 2010 were approved as a true and 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

32. Declarations of Interest 
There were no declarations of interest received. 

33. Internal Audit Interim Report for 2010/11 (GAC 2114) 
Ian Priestley updated the Committee on the outcomes of the work performed by Internal 
Audit during 2010-11. 
 
The Internal Audit found that the Council’s main financial systems were very sound and 
well controlled.  Ian also informed Members that audits on other systems were all 
assessed as satisfactory or better.  The one area of concern related to two follow up 
audits in Property Services where the absence of a working asset management database 
hampered implementation of the agreed recommendations. 
 
RESOLVED that Members note the contents of the report and consider whether the 
actions identified in the report were adequate. 

34. Council Governance (C2199) 
Andy Day updated the Committee on the proposed changes in the Council’s current 
scrutiny structures with effect from 01 April 2011 and as a consequence, the 
amendments to the previously approved timetable of meetings. 
 
He also updated the Council in relation to the Localism Bill and to the timetable for the 
introduction of any new governance structures (Committee System). 
 
Andy proposed that the Council’s current scrutiny structure be amended to contain the 
once Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission with effect from the 01 April 2011. 
 
Until the Localism Bill becomes legislation no further work will be undertaken on the 
possible structures associated with the Committee based decision making model. 
 

Agenda Item 2.

Page 1



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 14 FEBRUARY 2011 - MINUTES 
 

 
 
 

2 

RESOLVED that 
 
(1)  That the Council’s current scrutiny governance structures be amended from one 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission and five Select Committees to one 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission with effect from 1 April 2011. 

 
(2)  That the previously approved timetable of meetings for 2011/12 be amended to 

reflect the changes to the Council’s scrutiny structures. 
 
(3)  That the Council notes the position in relation to the timetable for the introduction of 

any new governance structures (Committee system). 

35. Amendments to the Constitution - Changes to the Terms of Reference 
of the Standards Committee and Governance and Audit Committee 
(C2195) 
Moira Fraser updated the Committee on the Terms of Reference for the Standards 
Committee and the Governance and Audit Committee amendments which were in line 
with the recommendations of an Internal Audit of the management of the Council’s 
Constitution.  
 
It was proposed that the Terms of Reference of the Standards Committee be extended to 
include the recommendation of improvements to the relevant sections of the Constitution 
covering Councillor conduct and ethical standards.  It was also proposed that Part 7 of 
the Councils Constitution be amended and that any corresponding references to the 
Governance and Audit Committee and the Standards Committee be delegated to the 
Monitoring Officer to amend. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(1) The Terms of Reference of the Standards Committee be extended as set out 

in paragraph 2.1 and Appendix B to the report. 

(2) Part 7 of the Council’s Constitution be amended as set out in paragraph 1.6 
and 1.7 of this report. 

(3) Any further corresponding changes to references in the Constitution to the 
Governance and Audit Committee and the Standards Committee be delegated to 
the Monitoring Officer to amend (e.g. Part 1 Summary and Explanation). 

 
(The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and closed at 7.19 pm) 
 
 
CHAIRMAN ……………………………………………. 
 
Date of Signature ……………………………………………. 

Page 2



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Title of Report: 

International Financial Reporting 
Standards - accounting policies and prior 
year comparators 

Report to be 
considered by: 

Governance and Audit Committee 

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2011 

Forward Plan Ref: GAC2212 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To approve the accounting policies for the 2010-11 
financial statements and the restated prior year 
comparator figures. 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To agree the accounting policies for the 2010-11 
financial statements, and to approve the restated 
2009-10 financial statements 
 

Reason for decision to be 
taken: 
 

The implementation of International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) in 2010-11. The 2010-11 financial 
statements will be significantly different, in format and 
detail, from the 2009-10 statements. This paper will enable 
members to review some of the changes in advance of the 
publication of the financial statements in the Summer 
2011. 
 

Other options considered: 
 

      
 

Key background 
documentation: 

IFRS 

 
The proposals will also help achieve the following Council Plan Theme: 
 CPT13 - Value for Money 

 
Portfolio Member Details 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Keith Chopping - (0118) 983 2057 
E-mail Address: kchopping@westberks.gov.uk 
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 

Agreed 28 February 2011 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Joseph Holmes 
Job Title: Chief Accountant  
Tel. No.: 01635 519474 
E-mail Address: jholmes@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 4.

Page 3



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Implications 
 

 
Policy: n/a 

Financial: No cost implications within the report; all the information 
contained within this is of a financial nature 

Personnel: n/a 

Legal/Procurement: n/a 

Property: n/a 

Risk Management:       

Equalities Impact 
Assessment: 

Not Required 

 

Is this item subject to call-in? Yes:   No:   

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box: 

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council  
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position   
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Commission or associated 
Task Groups within preceding six months 

 

Item is Urgent Key Decision  

Page 4



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Executive Summary 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 Local authorities are required to prepare their 2010/11 accounts using International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),  as interpreted for the Public sector in the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2010/11 issued by the Charted 
Institute of  Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  

1.2 The first time adoption of IFRS requires the restatement of the balance sheet on 
the first day of the comparator year that is 1st April 2009. It further requires that all 
statements for the comparator year are restated as though they had been produced 
under IFRS.  This has meant that the Council must restate its primary financial 
statements for the 2009-10 financial year to allow comparison with 2010-11 figures. 

1.3 The adoption of IFRS has also caused some changes to the accounting policies 
used by the Council. These have been attached in appendix B. 

2. Proposals 

2.1 The committee is being asked to approve the restated accounts and therefore the 
new opening balances to the current year accounts and the changes to the 
Council’s accounting policies. This is to ensure members have time to scrutinise 
and understand the changes under IFRS before the current year’s statements are 
presented to the committee in Summer 2011.  

3. Conclusion 

3.1 The restated balances and the changes to the accounting policies under IFRS are 
being presented to the committee for approval now to ensure that there is time for 
effective scrutiny of the financial statements during summer 2011. 

 

Page 5



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 To comply with the Government’s requirement to complete annual financial 
reporting in accordance with IFRS, changes are required to the Council’s financial 
statements. 

1.2 This report has two elements for approval by members: 

(1) The restatement of the 2009-10 approved and audited primary 
financial statements 

(2) The revision of the Council’s accounting policies 

1.3 By approving these in March 2011 it will allow greater time for discussion and 
scrutiny of the 2010-11 figures later in the year. This report also shows members 
the layout and format of the financial statements in advance of their production for 
2010-11. 

2. Restatement of Financial Statements 

2.1 The CIPFA code gives guidance on the figures to include within the financial 
statements and how they should be presented. First time adoption requires 
restatement of the balance sheet as at 1st April 2009, (this is the closing balance of 
2008/09), the first day of the comparator period. All the statements in the 2009/10 
statement of accounts have been restated and adapted into the new statements. 

2.2 The restated statements can be seen at appendix A. The main differences are 
highlighted below 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account: 

2.3 The total cost of services amount has changed due to the cost of the staff benefit 
accrual which has been charged to central services and due to the change in policy 
on government grants deferred. 

2.4 Also as a result of IFRS the amount for taxation and non specific grant income has 
changed because all grants both revenue and capital must be shown immediately 
as income on the I&E statement. The money that was in the balance sheet under 
current liabilities re capital grants is now showing on the income and expenditure 
account and has been reversed through the movement between reserves and is 
now an unusable reserve on the balance sheet.  

2.5 After the surplus or deficit for provision of services line on the I&E there are further 
new lines which used to be the now defunct Statement of Total Recognised Gains 
and Losses. 

Balance Sheet: 

2.6 During the financial year 2009/10 an exercise was carried out to look at all assets to 
ensure they met the criteria under IFRS, also to ensure that all investment 
properties are valued at fair value rather than replacement cost and to identify our 

Page 6



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

assets available for sale. A number of assets were changed between operational 
and investment properties and a couple of assets were removed from the register. 

2.7 There has also been a change in the way that non-operational assets are shown. 
Assets held for sale have been stripped from non-operational assets and moved to 
current assets. 

2.8 There is a new classification on the balance sheet  under current assets which is 
cash and cash equivalents, this line combines imprests, cash at bank or overdrawn 
and investments under three months.  

2.9 Government grants deferred used to show under long term liabilities and have now 
been moved into the capital adjustment account in unusable reserves. 

2.10  Reserves have been split into usable (which are shown separately in total equity), 
those which are available to the council to spend and unusable where the reserve is 
set aside for a specific purpose and is not available to spend. 

 Movement in Reserves Statement: 

2.11 This is a new statement that has to be included in the primary statements and 
shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the authority. 

 Statement of the Movement on the General Fund Balance:    
         

2.12 This statement has been removed under IFRS.   

 Cashflow Statement:  

2.13 The cashflow statement is presented using the direct method. 

 Notes to the Statements:  

2.14 The notes to the statements are similar to those under SORP (Statement of 
recommended practice) but with more detailed disclosures. Under IFRS there is a 
requirement to show segmental reporting in the notes. Segmental  reporting aims to 
enable the user of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial 
effects of the activitiies in which it  engages and the economic enviroment in which 
it operates. It also shows what was reported to manangement and the year end 
changes needed to produce the I&E account. 

3. Accounting Policy Changes  

3.1 The adoption of IFRS has resulted in a number of changes to the accounting 
policies 

3.2 Appendix B highlights the various changes to accounting policies 

(1) Employee Costs – the current policy has been expanded to include 
the Accumulated Absence Accrual and how we measure the accrual. 
Under IFRS, the Council needs to complete an accrual on the 
assumption that the Council ceases activity on the 31st March 2011, 
and work out the notional cost of accumulated staff absences, namely 

Page 7



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

accrued annual leave. There is no net cost to taxpayers as a result of 
this accrual. 

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents – This is a new policy for 2010-11 

(3) Non-Current Assets – In line with IAS 16 there has been a change to 
the classification of some assts and also a change to the valuation 
used for some classifications.  The rules around the componentisation 
of assets have changed which has led to an additional paragraph 
showing our policy on componentisation. 

(4) Investment Property – There has been a change in the classification 
of investment properties.  

(5) Government and Non-Government Grants – Under the code, grants 
and contributions relating to capital and revenue expenditure are 
accounted for on an accruals basis and recognised immediately as 
income on the comprehensive income and expenditure statement. The 
exception to this is where there is a condition attached that has not 
been satisfied. This is a departure from SORP in that capital grants 
were amortised to the Income and expenditure over the life of the 
funded asset. 

(6) Redundancy policy – this is a new policy to be included for 2010-11 

4. Conclusion 

4.1 Members are being asked to approve the restated statement of accounts, showing 
the new opening balances for the current year and the main changes to our 
accounting policies. 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Restated Financial Statements 
Appendix B – Accounting polices 
 
Consultees 
 
Local Stakeholders: N/A 

Officers Consulted: Jane Milone (HR Manager – Policy, information & Development), 
Lesley Flannigan (Finance Manager – Financial Reporting), Val 
Bettcher (Financial Accountant), Corporate Board 

Trade Union: N/A 
 

Page 8



income and expenditure

Restated

31/03/2010 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11

Net  Expenditure Expenditure Income
Net 

Expenditure

£000's note £000's £000's £000's

Net Expenditure on Continuing Services
39,872 Adult social care
19,476 Central Services
30,692 Cultural, Environmental,regulatory and Planning Services
37,142 Education and Children's Services
16,488 Highways  and Transport Services
2,534 Housing Services

146,204 Net Cost of Services 1 0 0 0

(585) (Gain) / loss on the disposal of fixed assets
3,191 Precepts to Parishes
126 Precepts & Levies
(176) (Surpluses)/deficits on trading undertakings

55
Contribution of Housing Capital receipts to government 
pool

2,611 Other Operating Expenditure 0

(292) Interest Receivable

5,829
Pension Interest cost and Expected return on Pension 
Assets

1,519 Interest Payable and similar charges

7,056
Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure 0

155,871 Net Operating Expenditure 0

(79,017) Income from Council Tax
(12,710) Non Ring Fenced Government Grants
(23,418) Contribution from Non-Domestic Rate Pool
(15,671) Capital Grants and Contributions
(130,816) Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 0
25,055 Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services 0

(22,882) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of Fixed Assets
78,700 Actuarial gains / losses on pension assets / liabilities

0 Restated Collection fund
55,818 Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 0
80,873 Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure

Page 1

Page 9



Balance Sheet

Restated Restated
01/04/2009 31/03/2010 2010/11
£000's £000's notes £000's £000's

Property, plant and Equipment
399,029 421,472 Property, plant and Equipment
6,978 10,431 Investment properties
10,874 8,553 Assets Under Construction
416,881 440,456 Fixed Assets net book value  0

727 552 Long Term Debtors 0
417,608 441,008 TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 0

Current Assets
2,000 8,000 Short term investments

19 70 Inventories
19,669 19,846 Short term debtors
5,386 4,160 Cash and cash equivalents
1,022 795 Assets held for sale
28,096 32,871 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 0
445,704 473,879 TOTAL ASSETS 0

Current Liabilities
(4,125) (16,036) Short term borrowing
(79,422) (61,050) Short term Creditors
(83,547) (77,086) TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 0
362,157 396,793 TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 0

Long term Liabilities
(141) (130) Provisions

(2,309) (2,136) Contributions deferred account
(79,361) (163,662) Pension liability
(21,755) (53,326) Borrowings PWLB

(743) (564) Other long term liabilities
(104,309) (219,818) 0
257,848 176,975 TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES 0

6,841 7,116 General Fund
2,256 1,213 Working Balances
16,552 19,561 Earmarked Reserves

39 26 Deferred Credit
593 606 Capital Receipts Reserve

231,567 148,453 Unusable reserves
257,848 176,975 TOTAL RESERVES 0

2008/09 2009/10

Usable
£000's

Deferred Credit 39 26
Usable Capital Receipt 593 606
Working balances 2,256 1,213
Earmarked reserves 16,552 19,561
General Fund 6,841 7,116

26,281 28,522

Unusable 

Employee Benefit reserve -6,577 -6,727
Revaluation reserve 20,131 41,837
Captital Adjustment 280,899 262,015
Pension Reserve -79,361 -163,662
Collection fund adjustment -589 -681
Capital grants 17,064 15,671

231,567 148,453

Page 2

Page 10



Cash Flow

Restated
2009/10 2010/11 2010/11
£'000 notes £'000 £'000

Operating Activities
96,643 Taxation
228,246 grants

107 Rents
1,600 sale of goods and rendering of service
310 interest received

1,349 other receipts from operating actvities

328,255 cash inflows generated from operating activities

(124,164) Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
(34,220) housing benefit paid out
(16,073) precepts paid

(55) Payments to the Capital Receipts Pool
(115,226) Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services
(1,519) Interest paid
(23,266) Other payments for operating activities
(314,523) cash outflows from operating activities

13,732 Net cashflows from operating activities

Investing activities
(58,527) Purchase of property plant and equipment
(77,300) Purchase of short and long term investments
(115,885) Other payments for investing activities

914

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and 
equipment, investment properties and intangible 
assets

83,300 Proceeds form the short and long term investments
115,885 other receipts from  investing activities
(51,613) net cash flows from investing activities

Financing activities
40,019 cash receipts of short and long term borrowing
951 other receipts from financing activities

(1,446) repayments of short and long term borrowing
(417) other payments for financing activities
39,107 Net cashflows from financing activities

1,226
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash 
equivalents

(5,386)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the reporting period

(4,160)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
reporting period

Page 3

Page 11



movement in reserves

Movement in Reserves Statement

(a) (b) (e) (f) (g) (h)
General Earmarked Capital Deferred Working Total Unusable Total
Fund GF Receipts Credit Balances Usable Reserves Authority
Balance Reserves Reserve Reserves Reserves
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Balance at 31 March 2009 6,841 16,552 593 39 2,256 26,281 231,567 257,848

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (accounting basis) (25,055) 0 0 0 0 (25,055) 0 (25,055)
Other Comprehensive Expenditure and Income (55,818) 0 0 0 0 (55,818) 0 (55,818)
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income (80,873) 0 0 0 0 (80,873) 0 (80,873)

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 
under regulations 83,814 0 0 0 0 83,814 (83,814) 0

Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves 2,941 0 0 0 0 2,941 (83,814) (80,873)

Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves (2,666) 3,009 13 (13) (1,043) (700) 700 0

Increase / Decrease in Year 275 3,009 13 (13) (1,043) 3,297 (83,114) (79,817)

Balance at 31 March 2010 7,116 19,561 606 26 1,213 28,522 148,453 176,975

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (accounting basis) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 
under regulations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Increase / Decrease in Year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2011 7,116 19,561 606 26 1,213 28,522 148,453 176,975

This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into 'usable reserves' (ie those that can be 
applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.  The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true 
economic cost of providing the authority's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. these 
are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance. The Net  Increase/Decrease before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves line show the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from 

Page 4

P
age 12



adj movement in reserves

General Capital Total Movement in Total
Fund Receipts Usable Unusable Authority
Balance Reserve Reserves Reserves Reserves

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Adjustments in respect of usable and 
unusable reserves

Charges for depreciation and impairment of long 
term assets 28,729 28,729 (28,729) 0
Revaluation  surpluses / losses on Property Plant 
and Equipment (22,882) (22,882) 22,882 0
Capital grants and contributions (15,101) (15,101) 15,101 0
Government Grants deferred account 1,786 0 1,786 (1,786) 0
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 
statute 2,727 0 2,727 (2,727) 0
Amounts of non current assets written off on 
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (585) 914 329 (329) 0
Repayment of PWLB debt (1,477) 0 (1,477) 1,477 0

0
Statutory provision for the financing of capital 
investment (405) 0 (405) 405 0

Direct revenue financing of capital expenditure (61) 0 (61) 61 0
0

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance 
new capital expenditure 0 (859) (859) 859 0
Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve 
to finance the payments to the Government 
capital receipts pool. 55 (55) 0 0 0

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits 
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement (see note xxx) 78,700 78,700 (78,700) 0

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct 
payments to pensioners payable in the year 5,601 5,601 (5,601) 0

Unusable account in respect of accumulated 
compensated absences 6,727 6,727 (6,727) 0
Total Adjustments between accounting basis 
and funding basis under regulations 83,814 0 83,814 (83,814) 0

Page 5

Page 13



Segmental Reporting

IFRS Council
Service Information
For the year ended 31 March 2010 COM CXD CYP ENV MTR

Children & Young Adult Social Environment Chief Below the line Total
People Services Executive items
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fees, charges & other service income (6,779) (612) (548) (5,600) 0 (13,539)
Government grants (14,140) (44,403) (134,360) (4,282) 0 (197,185)
Total Income (20,919) (45,015) (134,908) (9,882) 0 (210,724)

Employee expenses 18,353 4,600 17,017 9,025 0 48,995
Other operating expenses 44,536 45,374 139,396 29,014 4,479 262,799
Support Service Recharges 3,396 1,791 2,964 2,903 757 11,811
Total operating expenses 66,285 51,765 159,377 40,942 5,236 323,605

Net Cost of Services 45,366 6,750 24,469 31,060 5,236 112,881

Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
£000s

Cost of Services in Service Analysis 146,204

Add services not included in main analysis 0

Add amounts not included in the analysis  but included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 33,323

Remove  amounts included in the analysis  but not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 0

146,204
      K

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis Service Analysis
Services not in 

analysis

Amounts not 
included in the 
analysis but 

included in the 
Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement

Amounts included 
in the analysis but 
not included in the 
Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement

Allocation of 
support service 

recharges Net Cost of Corporate Total
(Single Entity) Services Amounts

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fees, charges & other service income (13,539) 0 (479) (14,018) (176) (14,194)
Surplus or deficit on associates and joint ventures 0 0 0 0 0 0
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 (292) (292)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (79,017) (79,017)
Government grants and contributions (197,185) 0 0 (197,185) (51,799) (248,984)
Total Income (210,724) 0 0 0 (479) (211,203) (131,284) (342,487)

Employee expenses 48,995 5,601 8,600 63,196 5,829 69,025
Other service expenses 262,799 101 3,211 266,111 0 266,111
Support Service recharges 11,811 0 (11,332) 479 0 479
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 27,621 0 27,621 0 27,621
Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 1,519 1,519
Precepts & Levies 0 0 0 0 3,317 3,317
Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 0 0 0 0 55 55
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 (585) (585)
Total operating expenses 323,605 0 33,323 0 479 357,407 10,135 367,542

Surplus or deficit on the provision of services 112,881 0 33,323 0 0 146,204 (121,149) 25,055
K C

Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Page 6

P
age 14



Statement of Accounting 
Policies 

 
The purpose of the Statement of Accounting Policies is to explain the basis of 
measurement that has been used in the preparation of the financial 
statements. The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s 
transactions for the 2010/11 financial year and its position at the year end 31st 
March 2011. 
 
The Financial Statements for 2010/11 have been prepared in accordance with 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: 
2010/11 issued by The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) and where appropriate the International Accounting Standards (IAS). 
The Accounting convention adopted is principally historical cost modified by 
fair value for particular categories of assets and liabilities. 
 
There are no instances in the Statement of Accounts where the fundamental 
accounting concepts have not been followed. 
 
(1) Employee Costs 
 
The cost of salaries and wages has been included in the Accounts based on 
12 months and 52 pay weeks.   
 
In line with IAS 19 an accrual has been made for leave and flexible hours 
owing at year end. The accrual is based on a sample of leave owing and then 
averaged out to give a total for the whole authority. No adjustment has been 
made for other employee costs. 
 
(2) Retirement Benefits 
 
Employees of the council are members of two separate pension schemes: 
 

• The Teacher’s Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ 
Pensions on behalf of the Department for Children, Schools and 
Families (DCSF). 

 
• The Local Government Pensions Scheme is administered by The 

Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead. 
 
Both schemes provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums 
and pension), earned as employees worked for the council. 
 
However, the arrangements for the teachers’ scheme mean that liabilities for 
these benefits cannot be identified to the council. The scheme is therefore 
accounted for as if it were a defined contributions scheme – no liability for 
future payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet and the 

Page 15



education service revenue account is charged with the employer’s 
contributions payable to teachers’ pensions in the year. 
 
 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits 
scheme: 
 

• The liabilities of the Berkshire pension scheme attributes to the council 
are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that 
will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by 
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee 
turnover rates, etc, and projections of projected earnings for current 
employees. 

 
• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a 

discount rate. (The discount rate is the yield on the Merrill Lynch Non 
Gilt Sterling AA over 15 year Corporate Bond index, with an adjustment 
to reflect the liabilities relative to the duration of the index.)  

 
• The assets of the Berkshire pension fund attributable to the council are 

included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 
- quoted securities – current bid price 
- unquoted securities – professional estimate 
- unitised securities – current bid price 
- Property – market value. 

 
• The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven 

components: 
 

- current service cost – the increase in liabilities as result of 
years of service earned this year – allocated in the Income 
and Expenditure Account to the revenue accounts of 
services for which the employees worked 

 
- past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from 

current year decisions whose effect relates to years of 
service earned in earlier years – debited to the Net cost of 
Services in the Income and Expenditure Account as part of 
Non Distributed Costs 

 
- Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of 

liabilities during the year as they move one year closer to 
being paid – debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the 
Income and Expenditure Account. 

 

Page 16



- Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on 
the fund assets attributable to the council, based on an 
average of the expected long-term return – credited to Net 
Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure 
Account. 

 
- gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of 

actions to relieve the council of liabilities or events that 
reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of 
employees – debited to the Net Cost of Services in the 
Income and Expenditure Account as part of Non Distributed 
Costs 

 
- Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions 

liability that arise because events have not coincided with 
assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because 
the actuaries have updated their assumptions – debited to 
the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 

 
- Contributions paid to the Berkshire pension fund – cash paid 

as employer’s contributions to the pension fund. 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General 
Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the 
pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant 
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means 
that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with 
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the 
fund but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the 
Pension Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund 
of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows 
rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
  
 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of 
retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated 
to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including teachers) 
are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for 
using the same policies as a re applied in the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. 
 
(3) Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
All revenue and capital income and expenditure relating to the financial year is 
accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments 
are made or received. In particular: 
 

Page 17



§ Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as 
income at the date the Council provides the relevant goods or services. 

§ Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed, where 
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their 
consumption; they are carried as inventory on the balance sheet. 

§ Works are charged as expenditure when they are completed, before 
which they are carried as works in progress in the balance sheet 

§ Interest payable on borrowing and receivable on investment is 
accounted for on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant 
financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by 
the contract 

§ Where income and expenditure have been recognised in the accounts 
but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the 
relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  

 
An exception to this rule is the periodic costs such as gas and electricity, they 
are included in the accounts on a payments basis where appropriate 
payments have been made and are not considered material to the accounts. 
 
(4) Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
Cash and cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
West Berkshire’s policy is to include cash in hand, deposits held at call with 
banks and other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less. 
 
(5) Inventories 
 
Inventories are shown in the Balance Sheet on a cost basis, which is 
compliant with IAS2, this recommends valuation at the lower of cost or net 
realisable value.   
 
(6) Overheads and Support Services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit 
from the service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Best 
Value Accounting code of Practice (BVACOP). The full cost of overheads and 
support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits 
received. 
 
The costs of the Corporate and Democratic Core have been separately 
identified and are not borne by the revenue services.  This category is defined 
by the BVACOP and accounted for, within the Central Services heading of the 
net cost of services in the Income and Expenditure Account. 
 
(7) Interest 
 

Page 18



Internal interest has been credited to certain reserves at the year-end based 
on the average level of balances during the year.  The balance of the interest 
received (after the amount credited to reserves) has been credited to the 
general fund. 
 
 (8) Debtors and Bad Debts 
 
Provisions for bad debts have been established in respect of general debtors 
in accordance with the CIPFA code of practice. The level of the provision has 
been set to provide adequate cover based upon an aged debt profile as at 
31st March 2011. 
 
(9) Investment 
 
Investments are shown in the Balance Sheet at cost.   
 
(10) Provisions  
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council an 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic 
benefits, but where the timing of the transfer is uncertain.  For instance, the 
council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the 
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year 
that the authority becomes aware of the obligation, based on the best 
estimate of the likely settlement.  When payments are eventually made, they 
are charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet.  Estimated 
settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes 
more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will not now be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is 
reversed and credited back to the relevant service revenue account. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to 
be met by another party (eg from an insurance claim), this is only recognised 
as income in the relevant service revenue account if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled. 
 
(11) Reserves 
 
The council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes 
or to cover contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts to 
the General Fund.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is 
incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service revenue account in that year 
to score against the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure 
Account.  The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund 
Balance so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for tangible 
fixed assets and retirement benefits these do not represent usable resources 

Page 19



for the council. Both usable and unusable reserves are explained in the 
relevant notes below. 
 
 (12) Non-Current Assets 
 
Only assets with a value of £5,000 or more are counted as non-current 
assets. 
 
Where a non-current asset yields economic benefit to the authority, all 
expenditure on, the acquisition, creation and enhancement of said asset is 
capitalised on an accruals basis. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs 
and maintenance of non-current assets, which is charged direct to service 
revenue accounts. 
 
Non-current assets are initially valued at cost, comprising all expenditure that 
is directly attributable to that asset, on the basis recommended by CIPFA and 
in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and 
Guidance Notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 
(RICS).  
 
CIPFA guidance allows authorities to choose whether to depreciate its assets 
at either the mid point through the year or at the end of the year. West 
Berkshire assets have been depreciated at the end of the year. 
 
Non-current assets are classified into the groupings required by the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting and shown in the Balance Sheet using 
the following headings: 
 

§ Land and Buildings, shown at fair value 
§ Plant and Equipment, shown at fair value 
§ Infrastructure Assets, shown at depreciated historical cost 
§ Community Assets, shown at depreciated historical cost 
§ Investment Properties, shown at market value 
§ Assets under construction  shown at historical cost 
§ Assets held for sale at fair value 

 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued as a minimum 
every five years, except for Investment properties which are revalued 
annually. From 2007/08 all increases in valuations are matched by credits to 
the revaluation reserve to recognise unrealised gains. 
 
The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 
2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that 
date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
If an impairment loss was identified on a non-current asset it would be 
charged to the Income and Expenditure Account. If there were accumulated 
revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve for that asset, an amount up to 
the value of the loss would be transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 

Page 20



 
When an asset is sold, the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet is written 
off to the Income and Expenditure account as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the Income and Expenditure 
account as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Any revaluation gains in the 
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The 
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the usable capital receipts 
reserve and can only be used for new capital investment or set aside to 
reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow. Receipts are appropriated to 
the reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 
Where an item of property plant or equipment is made up of components that 
have different asset lives, IAS 16 allows the components to be recognised as 
separate assets. West Berkshire Council will componentise assets where 
components are either 10% of the assets value or has a value of more than 
£250,000.These assets should be recognised either at the time of purchase or 
on revaluation. 
 
(13) Investment  Property 
 
Only properties that the authority holds solely to earn rental income or capital 
appreciation are classed as investment properties. These properties are not 
used by the council in its daily business. Initially investment properties are 
valued at cost and are then revalued annually. 
 
(14) Depreciation 
 
In accordance with International Accounting Standard 16 depreciation is 
provided for on all fixed assets with a finite useful life. 
 
All assets with the exception of freehold land, community assets, investment 
properties and assets under construction are depreciated, 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following basis: 

• Dwellings and other buildings – straight line allocation over the life of 
the property as estimated by the valuer. 

• Vehicles, plant and equipment - straight line allocation over the life of 
the asset, mainly 10 years. 

• IT assets are depreciated over 5 years. 
• Infrastructure – straight line allocation, between 10 and 40 years. 

 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the 
difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the 
depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost 
being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the capital 
adjustment Account. 
 

Page 21



Where assets have been componentised, components can be depreciated 
over different asset lives, but they will always be in the same asset class. 
 
(15)Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory 
provisions but does not result in the creation of a non current asset has been 
charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year.  
Where the council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from 
existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital 
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged to the General 
Fund Balance on the Statement of Movement in Reserves, so there is no 
impact on the level of council tax. 
 
(16) Charges to Revenue for non current assets 
 
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited 
with the following amounts to record the real cost of holding fixed assets 
during the year. 
 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 
• Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic 

benefits on tangible fixed assets used by the service and other losses 
where there are no accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve 
against which they can be written off.  

• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, 
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual 
provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall 
borrowing requirement (equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis 
determined by the authority in accordance with statutory guidance). 
 
Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by 
revenue provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the capital adjustment account for the difference between the 
two. 
 
 
(17) Capital Financing   
 
The Prudential Code Framework places the emphasis for capital expenditure 
on affordability.  Local authorities themselves decide how much they can 
afford to borrow, the costs of this borrowing being met from the revenue 
budget.   
Where ever possible the Council aims to fund any necessary capital 
investment from external sources of funding i.e. grants, developers’ 
contributions and capital receipts.  The level of investment required over and 
above the level of external funding available must then be weighed up against 

Page 22



the revenue cost of repaying loans to fund capital expenditure from external 
sources 
In establishing its Prudential Framework the Council has determined that it 
can support an annual Capital programme of approximately £15 million. 
Every year a borrowing limits and annual investment strategy is produced, this 
is approved by Full Council. 
 
(18) Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their 
amortised cost. Annual charges to the Income and Expenditure Account for 
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by 
the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the borrowings this 
means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding 
principal repayable and the interest charged to the Income and Expenditure 
Account is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
However the stock issued by the council in 2010/11 is carried at a lower 
amortised cost than the outstanding principal and interest is charged at a 
marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate payable to 
stockholders as a material amount of costs incurred in its issue is being 
financed over the life of the stock. 
 
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are 
credited and debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and 
Expenditure Account in the year of repurchase/settlement.  However, where 
repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that 
involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or 
discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the 
new or modified loan and the write-down to the Income and Expenditure 
Account is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective 
interest rate. 
 
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Income and 
Expenditure Account, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund 
Balance to be spread over future years.  The council has a policy of spreading 
the gain/loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the 
premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid.  The 
reconciliation of amounts charged to the Income and Expenditure Account to 
the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a 
transfer to or from the General Fund Balance. 
 
(19) Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets are classified into two types: 
 

• Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable 
payments but are not quoted in an active market. 

• Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price 
and/or do not have fixed or determinable payments 

Page 23



 
 
Loans and Receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their 
amortised cost.  Annual credits to the Income and Expenditure Account for 
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied 
by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  For the loans that the 
council has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance 
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable and interest credited to the 
Income and Expenditure Account is the amount receivable for the year in the 
loan agreement. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of likelihood, arising from a 
past event, that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset 
is written down and a charge made to the Income and Expenditure Account. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are 
credited/debited to the Income and Expenditure Account. 
 
Available-for-sale Assets 
 
Available-for-sale assets are initially measured and carried at fair value.  
Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the 
Income and Expenditure Account for interest receivable are based on the 
amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument.  Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (eg, 
dividends) is credited to the Income and Expenditure Account when it 
becomes receivable by the Council. 
 
Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value.  Values are based 
on the following principles: 
 

• Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 
• Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted 

cash flow analysis 
• Equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of 

company valuations. 
 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Capital Adjustment 
Account and the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services. The exception is where impairments losses have been 
incurred – these are debited to the Income and Expenditure Account, along 
with any net gain/loss for the asset accumulated in the Reserve. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a 
past event, that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset 
is written down and a charge made to the Income and Expenditure Account. 
 

Page 24



Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are 
credited/debited to the Income and Expenditure Account 
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost 
(less any impairment losses). 
 
Instruments Entered into Before 1 April 2006 
 
The council entered into a number of financial guarantees that are not 
required to be accounted for as financial instruments.  These guarantees are 
reflected in the Statement of Accounts to the extent that provisions might be 
required or a contingent liability note is needed. 
 
(20) Deferred Capital Receipts 
 
Deferred Capital Receipts are amounts derived from the sales of assets, 
which will be received in instalments over agreed periods of time.  They arise 
principally from mortgages and sales of council houses. 
 
(21)  Capital Receipts 
 
Capital receipts from the disposal of assets are held in the Capital Receipts 
Unapplied Account until such time as they are used to finance other capital 
expenditure or to repay debt. 
 
Under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 a Specific proportion of 
each capital receipt must be set aside or “reserved”; normally only the usable 
element is available to the Council. 
 
(22) Borrowing 
 
The loan debt held by Berkshire County Council (BCC) when it was abolished 
due to local government reorganisation as at the 31st March 1998 amounted 
to approximately £220m. The portfolio of debt consisted entirely of Public 
Works Loans Board (PWLB) loans, of which some £40m was deemed to be 
West Berkshire’s liability as part of the disaggregation process. At that time it 
was agreed by all the Berkshire authorities that the total debt would be 
administered by Reading Borough Council as part of their role as Designated 
Authority overseeing the closure of the BCC accounts 
 
The Prudential Code presented the opportunity for this Council and other 
Berkshire authorities to take back the direct management of the remaining 
part of the ex BCC loan debt.  The transfer took place with effect from 1st 
December 2005 and at that time £28.92m of Public Works Loan Board debt 
was transferred to West Berkshire Council. 
 
The level of Investment required to fund the capital programme currently over 
and above the level of external funding available is borrowed from the Public 
Works Loans Board. 
 

Page 25



 
(23) Trusts  
 
The Authority has direct involvement with the Corn Exchange Theatre. The 
council acts as a major funding source and has a non controlling interest on 
the Board of Trustees.  
 
The Corn Exchange is not a regulated Company as defined under the Local 
Authority’s (Companies) Order 1995. 
 
(24) Government Grants and Contributions  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants, 
both capital and revenue, and  third party contributions and donations are 
recognised as income at the date that the authority satisfies the conditions of 
entitlement to the grant/contribution. There must also be reasonable 
assurance that the monies will be received and the expenditure for which the 
grant is given has been incurred.  Monies  advanced as grants and 
contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the 
balance sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied the grant or 
contribution is moved to the relevant service revenue account. 
Where capital grants have been credited to the comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement they are reversed out of the General Fund through the 
Movement in Reserves statement. 
 
 
(25) VAT 
 
Income and expenditure in the Council’s accounts excludes any amounts 
related to VAT. VAT is reconciled and accounted for to HM Revenues and 
Customs on a monthly basis. 
 
(26) Leases 
 
The Council has acquired a number of assets, mainly vehicles and equipment 
by means of operating leases. In accordance with current accounting 
procedures the leased assets are not stated in the Balance Sheet. Rentals 
are charged to revenue in accordance with the terms of the lease. The 
Council did not enter into any finance lease agreements during the year. 
 
(27) Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
Post Balance Sheet Events are included in the notes to the core Financial 
Statements as they occur and represent significant transactions / events 
which are known to have taken place since the balance sheet date. 
 
 (28) Contingent Liabilities 
 

Page 26



Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the core Financial 
Statements and cover known liabilities where the actual cost of the liability is 
not known. 
 
(29) Group Accounts 
 
The SORP 2004 requires Councils to consider all their interests and to 
prepare a full set of group accounts where they have material interests in 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. West Berkshire Council currently 
has no interests, which necessitates the production of Group Accounts. 
 
(30) Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
 
PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for 
making available the fixed assets needed to provide the services passes to 
the PFI contractor.  Payments made by the council under a contract are 
generally charged to revenue to reflect the value of services received in each 
financial year. 
 
Prepayments 
 
A prepayment for services receivable under the contract arises when assets 
are transferred to the control of the PFI contractor, usually at the start of the 
scheme.  The difference between the value of the asset at the date of transfer 
and any residual value that might accrue to the authority at the end of the 
contract is treated as a contribution made to the contractor and is accounted 
for as a prepayment.  The prepayment is written down (charged) to the 
respective revenue account over the life of the contract to show the full value 
of services received in each year.  However, as the charge is a notional one, it 
is reversed out in the General Fund to remove any impact on council tax or 
rents. 
 
Dowry payments, made at the start of the contract, which result in lower 
unitary payments over the life of the contract these are accounted for by 
setting up the contribution (dowry) as a prepayment for services receivable 
and writing the balance down to revenue over the life of the contract as 
services are received to reflect their real cost. 
 
Reversionary Interests 
 
The council has passed control of certain land and buildings over to the PFI 
contractor, but this property will return to the council at the end of the scheme 
(reversionary interests).  An assessment has been made of the net present 
value that these assets will have at the end of the scheme (unenhanced) and 
a reversionary interest asset has been created in the council’s Balance Sheet. 
 
As the asset is stated initially at net present value, over the life of the scheme, 
the discount will need to be unwound by earmarking (decreasing) part of the 
unitary payment to ensure the reversionary interest is recorded at current 
prices when the interests revert to the council. 

Page 27



 
Residual Interests 
 
Where assets created or enhanced under the PFI scheme are to pass to the 
council at the end of the scheme at a cost less than fair value (including nil) 
(residual interests), an amount equal to the difference between the fair value 
and the payment to be made at the end of the contract is built up as a long-
term debtor over the contract life by reducing the amount of the unitary 
payment charged to the revenue. 
 
PFI Credits 
 
Government grants received for PFI schemes, in excess of current levels of 
expenditure, are carried forward as an earmarked reserve to fund future 
contract expenditure. 
 
 (31) Landfill allowance  
 
The Waste and Emissions Trading Act 2003 places a duty on waste disposal 
authorities to reduce the amount of biodegradable municipal waste (BMW) 
disposed to landfill. From 1 April 2005 central government introduced a 
trading scheme, which allocates tradable landfill allowances. 
 
These allowances are recognised as current assets in the Council’s Balance 
Sheet at market value. As waste is sent to landfill a liability is incurred to hold 
allowances equal to the landfill usage that is recognised as a current liability in 
the Council’s Balance Sheet. Unused allowances at the end of the year are 
shown on the Balance Sheet, as an earmarked reserve, at a weighted 
average value.  
 
 
(32) Redundancy Policy 
 
It is West Berkshire council’s policy to minimise the impact of organisational 
change on its employees and to redeploy employees whenever possible. 
Therefore redundancies and redundancy payments only occur when 
absolutely necessary and in consultation with Trade unions.  
When redundancy payments are applicable it will be as a result of a decision 
by the Authority to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal 
retirement date in circumstances where the statutory definition of redundancy 
applies (ERA1996, s139).  These payments are charged on an accruals basis 
to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement when the Authority is demonstrably committed to the 
termination of the employment on the grounds of redundancy of an officer or 
group of officers. 
 
West Berkshire’s policy is not to offer enhanced pension payments on 
Termination of employment on the grounds of redundancy or efficiency. 
 

Page 28



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Title of Report: 
Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 2011-
12 

Report to be 
considered by: 

Governance and Audit Committee 

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2011 

Forward Plan Ref:       
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To review the Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy for 
the coming year 2011-12 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

Review and approve the Strategy  
 

Reason for decision to be 
taken: 
 

To minimise the risk of and incidence of fraud and 
corruption  
 

Other options considered: 
 

none 
 

Key background 
documentation: 

none 

 
The proposals will also help achieve the following Council Plan Themes: 
 CPT13 - Value for Money 
 CPT14 - Effective People 
 CPT16 - Excellent Performance Management 

The proposals contained in this report will help to achieve the above Council Plan Priorities 
and Themes by: 
Ensuring strong governance  
 
Portfolio Member Details 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Keith Chopping - (0118) 983 2057 
E-mail Address: kchopping@westberks.gov.uk 
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 

2nd March 2011 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Ian Priestley  
Job Title: Chief InternalAuditor 
Tel. No.: 01635 519253 
E-mail Address: ipriestley@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 5.

Page 29



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Implications 
 

 
Policy: none 

Financial: none 

Personnel: none 

Legal/Procurement: none 

Property: none  

Risk Management: The strategy aims to minimise the risk of fraud and corruption 
occuring 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment: 

No impact anticipated 
 

 
 

Is this item subject to call-in? Yes:   No:   

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box: 

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council  
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position   
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Commission or associated 
Task Groups within preceding six months 

 

Item is Urgent Key Decision  

Page 30



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Executive Summary 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to review and update the Anti Fraud Strategy, that was 
introduced in 2009-10, to combat the incidence of fraud and corruption.  

1.2 The Strategy, appendix A, sets out the key elements of the measures that the 
Council takes to combat fraud. 

2. Proposals 

2.1 The Fraud Strategy should be approved by the Council. 

3. Conclusion 

3.1 The Council’s anti fraud strategy remains up to date and effective. 

3.2 The Council needs to remain alert to the ongoing incidence of fraud particularly in 
the area of Benefits and Single Person Discounts. 

3.3 The Council needs to remain vigilant to new threats of fraud. A good example of 
this is the recent supplier frauds that have hit councils. Fortunately staff at West 
Berkshire Council have been alert and have so far blocked such frauds. Other 
councils have not been so alert and have lost significant sums. 

 

Page 31



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 The Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy forms part of the governance arrangements 
of the Council. Its purpose is to minimise the risk of fraud occurring. By minimising 
the losses through fraud it ensures that the resources available are used for the 
purposes they were intended for i.e. to support the delivery of the Council's 
objectives as set out in the Council Plan. A copy of the Strategy is at Appendix A.  

1.2 The Council maintains high standards of probity and has a good reputation for 
protecting the public purse. Sound systems of public accountability are vital to 
effective management and in maintaining public confidence. The Council is 
committed to protecting the public funds entrusted to it. Although the Council has 
good policies and procedures they can be ignored, and fraud can happen.  The 
minimisation of losses to fraud and corruption is essential to ensure that resources 
are used for their intended purpose to provide services to the citizens of West 
Berkshire. 

1.3 The public is entitled to expect the Council to conduct its affairs with integrity, 
honesty and openness, and to demand the highest standards of conduct from 
those working for it. This Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy outlines the Council’s 
commitment to creating an anti-fraud culture, and maintaining high ethical 
standards in its administration of public funds. 

1.4 The Strategy is based on best practice set out in the CIPFA Anti Fraud Guide and 
is designed to sit above a number of related policies and procedures. The Strategy 
is designed to prevent, detect and deter fraud and to take effective action against 
any attempted or actual fraudulent act affecting the Council. The Strategy also 
satisfies the legislative requirements to have effective arrangements for tackling 
fraud, and conforms with professional guidance laid down in the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government. 

1.5 The Strategy is designed to link with the Council’s objectives set out in the Council 
Plan. Fraud and Corruption inevitably takes resources away from these objectives. 
By putting in effective measures to prevent fraud the Council can minimise losses 
and minimise the cost of investigating cases of fraud and corruption. 

1.6 The Strategy  is designed to sit above a number of existing Council policies and 
procedures to ensure that these are compatible and work together to minimise the 
risk of fraud and corruption occurring. These include: 

(1) The Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy 

(2) The Whistleblowing Policy (Confidential Reporting Code) 

(3) Anti Money Laundering Policy 

(4) Officer Code of Conduct 

(5) Disciplinary Code 

Page 32



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

(6) Contract and Financial Rules of Procedure 

(7) Recruitment Procedures 

(8) Risk Strategy 

(9) Internal Audit Strategy 

(10) Housing Benefits Anti Fraud Strategy. 

2. Bribery Act 2010 

2.1 The Bribery Act will come into force on 1st April 2011. The Act will: 

(1) Introduce a corporate offence of failure to prevent bribery by persons 
working on behalf of a business. A business can avoid conviction if it 
can show that it has adequate procedures in place to prevent bribery.  

(2) Make it a criminal offence to give, promise or offer a bribe and to 
request, agree to receive or accept a bribe either at home or abroad. 
The measures cover bribery of a foreign public official.  

(3) Increase the maximum penalty for bribery from seven to 10 years 
imprisonment, with an unlimited fine.  

2.2 The Ministry of Justice is currently consulting on likely guidance for organisations 
 about how to prevent bribery and as to how an organisation may be able to show 
that it has adequate bribery prevention procedures in place to constitute a defence 
to  prosecution. Once this is available the Council will need to review its procedures 
to ensure compliance. 

3. New threats 

3.1 The range of threats of fraud is constantly changing. The latest examples involve 
fraudsters faking supplier documentation. In one case fraudsters provided new, 
fabricated, bank account details in an attempt to have BACS payments, from the 
Council to a supplier, diverted. In another case fraudsters faked a contract novation 
relating to a software supplier with the aim of diverting payment from the legitimate 
supplier. 

3.2 A number of Council’s have been caught be this type of fraud and lost significant 
sums as a result. Fortunately this Council was aware of the risk and alert officers 
were able to prevent the frauds occurring.  

3.3 What these two cases do demonstrate is the need for the Council continuously 
review its systems and procedures to ensure that the risk of fraud is minimised. 

4. Anti Fraud work  

4.1 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
 

(1) The NFI is a national data matching exercise previously undertaken by 
the Audit Commission every two years.  It is unclear whether this will 
continue following the abolition of the Audit Commission. It is designed 

Page 33



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

to help participating bodies identify possible cases of fraud and detect 
and correct any under/over payments from public monies. Participation 
in the NFI was a legal requirement 

(2) Internal Audit review the matched data with colleagues in other 
services to investigate possible instances of fraud.  

(3) Over the years that this process has been in place the cost of staff time 
has far exceeded the value of fraud identified. 

4.2 Benefits Anti Fraud Team  

(1) The Benefits and Exchequer Service have a small team the 
investigates cases of Benefit Fraud. This team is very successful in 
identifying fraud and has carried out a number of successful 
prosecutions of fraudsters.  

(2) The Government is presently consulting on centralising the Benefits  
anti fraud teams under Department for Works and Pensions.  

(3) The Benefits and Exchequer Service also have a Discount Review 
Officer who has been very successful in identifying cases of wrongly 
claimed Council Tax Single Persons Discount.  

4.3 Internal Audit  

(1) Internal Audit carry out a range of audits each year that are designed 
to review procedures and controls in systems where there is felt to be a 
risk of fraud.  

(2) For example Internal Audit provided advice to the payments team in 
Benefits and Exchequer Services that allowed the payments team to 
identify a number of attempted payment frauds, noted above. 

5. Recommendation 

5.1 The Strategy has been brought to the Governance and Audit Committee for review 
and adoption by the Council.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – Draft Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 2011-12 
 
Consultees 
 
Local Stakeholders:  

Officers Consulted: Corporate Board 

Trade Union:  
 

Page 34



Page 1 of 11 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT 

 

West Berkshire Council  

 

Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 

 

March 2011 

Page 35



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 1  

1.  INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Good Corporate Governance requires that the authority must demonstrate 
clearly that it is firmly committed to dealing with fraud and corruption and will 
deal equally with perpetrators from inside (Members and employees) and 
outside the Council.  In addition there will be no distinction made in 
investigation and action between cases that generate financial benefits and 
those that do not.  This Strategy, however, will not compromise the Council’s 
Equal Opportunities Policy or the requirements of the Human Rights Act 1998. 

1.2 This Strategy embodies best practice, as outlined the CIPFA Anti Fraud 
Guide, and contains a series of measures designed to frustrate any attempted 
fraudulent or corrupt act and the steps to be taken if such action occurs.  For 
ease of understanding it is separated into six areas as below:- 

Culture     Section 2 

Prevention     Section 3 

Deterrence     Section 4 

Detection and Investigation  Section 5 

Training     Section 6 

1.3 The Council is also aware of the high degree of external scrutiny of its affairs 
by a variety of bodies such as External Audit and Inspection, other 
Government Inspection bodies, the Local Government Ombudsman, HM 
Revenue and Customs.  These bodies are important in highlighting any areas 
where improvements can be made. 

1.4 The Strategy links closely with the Council’s strategic objectives set out in the 
Council Plan. The Council Plan sets out a range of ambitious objectives that 
need significant resources to deliver them. Losses due to fraud and corruption 
will inevitably divert resources away from these objectives. Consequently the 
Council takes a zero tolerance approach to tackling fraud and corruption. 

1.5 Fraud and corruption are defined by the Audit Commission as:- 

Fraud – “the intentional distortion of financial statements or other records by 
persons internal or external to the authority which is carried out to conceal the 
misappropriation of assets or otherwise for gain”. 

In addition, fraud can also be defined as “the intentional distortion of financial 
statements or other records by persons internal or external to the authority 
which is carried out to mislead or misrepresent”.   

Corruption – “the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or 
reward which may influence the action of any person”. 

In addition, this policy statement also covers “the failure to disclose an interest 
in order to gain financial or other pecuniary benefit.” 

1.6 Fraud Act 2006 

The Fraud Act 2006 came into effect on 15 January 2007. The Act creates a 
new general offence of fraud with three ways of committing it:  

Page 36



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 2  

• Fraud by false representation (dishonest representation) to gain or cause loss 
or risk of loss (eg phising) (chip and pin) 

• Fraud by failing to disclose information (where there is a legal duty, eg under 
written or oral contracts – eg heart condition & health insurance) 

• Fraud by abuse of position – (eg power of attorney over an elderly relative) 

It also creates new offences:  

• Obtaining services dishonestly  (eg climbing over a fence to watch a football 
match) 

• Possessing, making and supplying articles for use in frauds  (eg program or 
data held on file, draft letters for advance fee frauds) 

• Fraudulent trading applicable to non-corporate traders. (extends Companies 
Acts  to sole traders etc)  

2. CULTURE 

2.1 The culture of the Council has always been one of openness and integrity.  
This culture therefore supports the opposition to fraud and corruption, 
supported by the Council’s Confidential Reporting Code (Whistleblowing), and 
the Officer and Member Codes of Conduct. 

2.2 The prevention/detection of fraud/corruption and the protection of the public 
purse are responsibilities of everyone, both internal and external to the 
organisation. 

2.3 The Council’s elected Members and employees play an important role in 
creating and maintaining this culture.  They are positively encouraged to raise 
concerns regarding fraud and corruption, immaterial of seniority, rank or 
status, in the knowledge that such concerns will wherever possible be treated 
in confidence.  The public also has a role to play in this process and should 
inform the Council if they feel that fraud/corruption may have occurred. 

2.4 Concerns must be raised when Members, employees or the public reasonably 
believe that one or more of the following has occurred, is in the process of 
occurring, or is likely to occur: 

• A criminal offence 

• A failure to comply with a statutory or legal obligation 

• Improper or unauthorised use of public or other official funds 

• A miscarriage of justice 

• Maladministration, misconduct or malpractice 

• Endangering an individual’s health and/or safety 

• Damage to the environment 

• Deliberate concealment of any of the above 

Page 37



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 3  

2.5 The Council will ensure that any allegations received in any way, including by 
anonymous letters or telephone calls, will be taken seriously and investigated 
in an appropriate manner. The Standards Committee specifically excluded 
investigation of anonymous complaints against Members. 

2.6 The Council will deal firmly with those who defraud the Council or who are 
corrupt, or where there has been financial malpractice.  There is, of course, a 
need to ensure that any investigation process is not misused and, therefore, 
any abuse (such as employees/Members raising malicious allegations) may 
be dealt with as a disciplinary matter (employees) or through Group 
procedures (Members), or through the Standards Committee. 

2.7 When fraud and corruption has occurred due to a breakdown in the Council’s 
systems or procedures, Corporate Directors / Heads of Service will ensure that 
appropriate improvements in systems of control are implemented in order to 
prevent a re-occurrence. 

2.8 A key aim of this Strategy is to work towards reducing the losses to the 
Council caused by Fraud and Corruption. 

3. PREVENTION 

3.1 Policies and Procedures 

3.1.1 The Council maintains a range of related policies and procedures that are 
designed to minimise the risk of Fraud and Corruption occurring.  This 
Strategy is designed to ensure that all of these policies and procedures are 
compatible and effective. These include: 

• The Whistleblowing Policy (Confidential Reporting Code) 

• Anti Money Laundering Policy 

• Officer Code of Conduct 

• Disciplinary Code 

• Contract and Financial Rules of Procedure 

• Recruitment Procedures 

• Risk Strategy 

• Internal Audit Strategy 

• Housing Benefits Anti Fraud Strategy. 

 ELECTED MEMBERS 

3.2        The Role of Elected Members 

3.2.1 As elected representatives, all Members of the Council have a duty to the 
Citizens of the District to protect the Council and public money from any acts 
of fraud and corruption. 

Page 38



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 4  

3.2.2 This is done through the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy, compliance with 
the adopted Code of Conduct for Members, the Council’s Constitution, 
including Financial and Contract Rules of Procedure, and relevant legislation. 

3.2.3 Elected Members sign and confirm that they have read and understood the 
Code of Conduct for Members when they take office. Conduct and ethical 
matters are specifically brought to the attention of Members during induction 
and include the declaration and registration of interests.  The Head of Legal 
and Electoral Services advises Members of new legislative or procedural 
requirements and assists in their application of the Code when they are acting 
as Members of the Council. 

3.2.4 The Executive will own the Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy and ensure 
that it is refreshed annually. 

3.2.5 The Governance and Audit Committee will monitor and review the 
implementation of the Strategy. 

3.2.6 The Standards Committee is responsible for enforcing and dealing with 
complaints against Councillors insofar as they relate to breaches of the Code 
of Conduct.  

 EMPLOYEES 

3.3 The Role of the s151 officer 

3.3.1 The Head of Finance has the statutory responsibilities defined by s151 of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  These responsibilities outline that every local 
authority in England & Wales should: 

“make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and 
shall secure that one of their officers has the responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs”. 

3.3.2 Proper administration encompasses all aspects of local authority financial 
management including: 

• Compliance with the statutory requirements for accounting and 
internal audit; 

• Ensuring the Authority’s responsibility for ensuring proper 
administration of it’s financial affairs; 

• The proper exercise of a wide range of delegated powers both formal 
and informal;  

• The responsibility for managing the financial affairs of the local 
authority in all it’s dealings; and 

• The recognition of the fiduciary responsibility owed to local tax payers. 

3.3.3 Under these statutory responsibilities the Head of Finance contributes to the 
anti-fraud and corruption framework of the Council. 

3.4 The Role of Managers 

Page 39



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 5  

3.4.1 Managers at all levels are responsible for the communication and 
implementation of this strategy in their work area.  They are also responsible 
for ensuring that their employees are aware of the Councils HR policies and 
procedures, the Council’s Financial and Contract Rules of Procedure and that 
the requirements of each are being met in their everyday business activities.  
In addition, managers must make their employees aware of the requirements 
of the Officers Code of Conduct within the Constitution through the induction 
process. 

3.4.2 Managers are expected to create an environment in which their staff feel able 
to approach them with any concerns they may have about suspected 
irregularities.  Where they are unsure of the procedures they must refer to the 
Council’s Confidential Reporting Code (Whistleblowing). 

3.4.3 Special arrangements will apply where employees are responsible for cash 
handling or are in charge of financial systems and systems that generate 
payments, for example payroll or the cash management system.  Managers 
must ensure that relevant training is provided for all employees.   

3.4.4 The Council recognises that a key preventative measure in dealing with fraud 
and corruption is for managers to take effective steps at the recruitment stage 
to establish, as far as possible, the honesty and integrity of potential 
employees, whether for permanent, temporary or casual posts and agency 
staff.  The Council’s formal recruitment procedure contains appropriate 
safeguards in the form of written references, the verification of qualifications 
held and employment history.  As in other public bodies Criminal Records 
Bureau (CRB) checks are undertaken for employees working with or who may 
have contact with children or vulnerable clients.  

3.5 Responsibilities of Employees 

3.5.1 Each employee is governed in their work by the Council’s Financial and 
Contract Rules of Procedure, and other policies on conduct (Health and Safety 
and IT Security policy).  Included in the Council policies are guidelines on Gifts 
and Hospitality, and codes of conduct associated with professional and 
personal conduct and conflict of interest.  These are issued to all employees 
when they join the Council or are available to all on the Intranet. 

3.5.2 In addition to paragraph 3.4.1, employees are responsible for ensuring that 
they follow the instructions given to them by management, particularly in 
relation to the safekeeping of the assets of the Authority.  These will be 
included in induction training and service procedure. 

3.5.3 Employees are expected always to be aware of the possibility that fraud, 
corruption and theft may exist in the workplace and be able to share their 
concerns with management.  If for any reason, they feel unable to speak to 
their manager they must refer the matter to one of those named below. 

3.5.4 Concerns must be raised, in the first instance, directly with the Line  
Manager/Head teacher or if necessary, anonymously (letter, telephone) and 
via other routes, by the Council’s Confidential Reporting Code 
(Whistleblowing) , eg: - 

Page 40



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 6  

• Heads of Service, Corporate Directors, the Chief Executive or the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer, who will report such concerns to the 
Head of Finance 

• Directly to the Head of Finance / Chief Internal Auditor 

• External Auditor, who depending upon the nature of the concern will 
liaise with the Head of Finance 

• Trade Union Representative 

3.6 Conflicts of Interest 

3.6.1 Both elected Members and employees must ensure that they avoid situations 
where there is a potential for a conflict of interest.  Such situations can arise 
with externalisation of services, internal tendering, planning and land issues 
etc.  Effective role separation will ensure decisions made are seen to be 
based upon impartial advice and avoid questions about improper disclosure of 
confidential information. 

3.7 Official Guidance 

3.7.1 In addition to the Council’s Financial and Contract Rules of Procedure, Service 
Units will have their own procedures to prevent and deter fraud.  There will 
also be audit reports, which recommend methods to minimise risks and losses 
to the Authority.  Managers and employees must be made aware of these 
various sources of guidance and alter their working practices accordingly. 

3.8 Role of Internal Audit 

3.8.1 Internal Audit plays a vital preventative role in trying to ensure that systems 
and procedures are in place to prevent and deter fraud and corruption.  
Internal Audit investigates all employee cases of suspected financial 
irregularity, fraud or corruption, except Benefit fraud investigations (see 
below), in accordance with agreed procedures. Within the Financial Procedure 
Rules in the Constitution, representatives of Internal Audit are empowered to, 
and will: 

• enter at all reasonable times any Council premises or land 

• carry out unannounced visits to Council Offices to carry out spot 
checks  

• have access to all records, documentation and correspondence 
relating to any financial and other transactions as considered 
necessary 

• have access to records belonging to third parties such as contractors 
when required   

• require and receive such explanations as are regarded necessary 
concerning any matter under examination 

• require any employee of the Council to account for cash, stores or any 
other Council property under his/her control or possession 

3.8.2 Internal Audit will normally take the lead in investigating any non Housing 
Benefit cases of fraud and corruption. The Internal Audit Strategy sets out a 

Page 41



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 7  

proactive approach to reducing the risk of Fraud and Corruption. The Chief 
Internal Auditor acts as the “Head of Internal Audit” and has access  to the 
necessary records and staff  to de able to deal with any investigations.  

 3.8.3 Internal Audit liaises with management to recommend changes in procedures 
to reduce risks and prevent losses to the Authority.  

3.9 The Role of the Benefits Investigation Team 

3.9.1 The Benefits Investigation Team is responsible for all of the benefit fraud 
investigations, in accordance with legislation and agreed codes of conduct.  In 
cases where employees are involved they will work with Internal Audit, HR 
and appropriate senior management to ensure that correct procedures are 
followed and that this policy is adhered to. 

3.10 The Role of the External Auditor 

3.10.1 Independent external audit is an essential safeguard of the stewardship of 
public money. This is currently carried out by the KPMG through specific 
reviews that are designed to test (amongst other things) the adequacy of the 
Council’s financial systems and arrangements for preventing and detecting 
fraud and corruption.  It is not the external auditors’ function to prevent fraud 
and irregularities, but the integrity of public funds is at all times a matter of 
general concern.  External auditors are always alert to the possibility of fraud 
and irregularity, and will act without undue delay if grounds for suspicion come 
to their notice.  The external auditor has a responsibility to review the 
Council’s arrangements for preventing and detecting fraud and irregularities, 
and arrangements designed to limit the opportunity for corrupt practices. 

3.10.2 Where External Audit is required to undertake an investigation they will 
operate within legislation and their codes of conduct.  

3.11 Co-operation with Others 

3.11.1 Internal Audit has arranged, and in compliance of the Data Protection Act,  to 
develop and encourage the exchange of information on national and local 
fraud and corruption activity in relation to Local Authorities, with external 
agencies such as:  

• Police 

• County, Unitary and District Groups 

• Audit Commission 

• Department of Work and Pensions 

• Government Departments 

• National Anti-Fraud Network 

3.12 The Role of the Public 

3.12.1 This policy, although primarily aimed at those within or associated with the 
Council, enables concerns raised by the public to be investigated, as 
appropriate, by the relevant person in a proper manner. 

4 DETERRENCE 

Page 42



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 8  

4.1 Housing and Council Tax Benefit Administration 

4.1.1 Benefits administration is recognised nationally as being complex and difficult 
to administer. This results in the scheme being prone to error and abuse.  The 
Authority is committed to tackling poverty but it must also ensure that the 
administration of housing and council tax benefit is secure, fair and provides 
prompt help to those who need it. Equally, it must also be vigilant in tackling 
fraud and error to ensure value for taxpayers’ money. 

4.1.2 The  Benefits & Exchequer Service operates within the Government’s policies 
and guidelines and the National Performance Standards Framework, which 
aims to improve the quality and accuracy of benefit determinations and both 
prevent and reduce the incidence of fraud.  

4.2 Prosecution 

4.2.1 To support this policy the Council has a policy to prosecute in all appropriate 
circumstances. This policy encompasses the public, elected Members and 
employees.  It is designed to clarify and ensure consistency in the Council’s 
action in specific cases and to deter others from committing offences against 
the Authority. 

4.3 Disciplinary Action 

4.3.1 Theft, fraud and corruption are serious offences against the Authority and 
employees will face disciplinary action if there is evidence that they have been 
involved in these activities, including Benefit fraud.  Disciplinary action will be 
taken in addition to, or instead of, criminal proceedings depending on the 
circumstances of each individual case but in a consistent manner. 

4.3.2 Members will face appropriate action under this policy if they are found to 
have been involved in theft, fraud and corruption against the Authority. Action 
will be taken in addition to, or instead of criminal proceedings, depending on 
the circumstances of each individual case but in a consistent manner. If the 
matter is a breach of the Code of Conduct for Members then it will also be 
referred to the Standards Committee.  The relevant Group Leader will also be 
informed. 

4.4 Publicity 

4.4.1 The Council’s Public Relations Unit (PR) will optimise the publicity 
opportunities associated with anti-fraud and corruption activity within the 
Council.  PR will also try to ensure that the results of any action taken, 
including prosecutions, are also reported in the press. 

4.4.2 In all cases (both Member and Officer) where the Council has suffered a 
financial loss then the Council will seek to recover the loss and advertise this 
fact. 

4.4.3 All anti-fraud and corruption activities, including the update of this policy, will 
be publicised in order to make the employees and the public aware of the 
Council’s commitment to taking action on fraud and corruption, when it occurs. 

Page 43



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 9  

5 DETECTION AND INVESTIGATION 

5.1 Internal Audit plays an important role in the detection of fraud and corruption. 
Included in their audit plan are reviews of system controls including financial 
controls and specific fraud and corruption tests and spot checks.   

5.2 In addition to Internal Audit, there are numerous systems and management 
controls in place to deter fraud and corruption but it is often the vigilance of 
employees and Members of the public that aids detection. 

5.3 In some cases frauds are discovered by chance or “tip-off” and arrangements 
are in place to enable such information to be properly dealt with. 

5.4 All suspected irregularities are required to be reported (verbally or in writing) 
either by the person with whom the initial concern is raised or by the originator 
as per paragraph 3.4.4 (the Council’s Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) 
Code.  This is essential to the strategy and: 

• Ensures the consistent treatment of information regarding fraud and 
corruption; and 

• Facilitates a proper and thorough investigation by an experienced 
audit team or appropriate officer, in accordance with agreed 
procedures. 

5.5 This process will apply to all the following areas: 

a) fraud/corruption by elected Members 

b) internal fraud/corruption 

c) other fraud/corruption by Council employees 

d) fraud by contractors or their employees 

e) external fraud (the public) 

5.6 Cases under d) and e) would normally be referred directly to the Audit 
Commission or Police.  Cases under (a) in respect to the Code of Conduct for 
Members will be referred to the Standards Committee for initial assessment in 
addition to the Audit Commission and/or the Police. 

5.7 Any decision to refer a matter to the Police will be taken by the Monitoring 
Officer in consultation with the Heads of HR and Finance. 

5.8 Depending on the nature of an allegation under b) to e), the Head of Finance 
will normally work closely with the Corporate Director / Head of Service 
concerned to ensure that all allegations are thoroughly investigated and 
reported upon. 

5.9 The Council’s Disciplinary Procedures will be used to facilitate a thorough 
investigation of any allegations of improper behaviour by employees.  The 
processes as outlined in paragraph 4.3.2 will cover Members. 

6. AWARENESS AND TRAINING 

6.1 The Council recognises that the continuing success of this strategy and its 
general credibility will depend in part on the effectiveness of training and 

Page 44



WEST BERKSHIRE COUNCIL – DRAFT ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 2011 

Page 10  

awareness for Members and employees. The policy is an integral part of the 
induction programme and there is specialist training for certain elected 
Members and employees. 

6.2 Regular awareness by managers’ briefings, leaflets and information cards will 
ensure that the policy is kept current.  Full copies of the Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption and Confidential Reporting policies are available on the intranet. 

6.3 In addition external fraud alerts are circulated to all appropriate staff and will in 
future appear on the Intranet. 

7. CONCLUSION 

7.1 The Council has always prided itself on setting and maintaining high standards 
and a culture of openness and integrity.  This strategy fully supports the 
Council’s desire to maintain an honest authority, free from fraud and 
corruption. 

7.2 The Council has in place a network of systems and procedures to assist it in 
dealing with fraud and corruption when it occurs. It is determined that these 
arrangements will keep pace with any future developments in both 
preventative and detection techniques regarding fraudulent or corrupt activity 
that may affect its operation. 

7.3 The Council will maintain a continuous review of all these systems and 
procedures through Internal Audit. 

7.4 This policy statement will be reviewed on a regular basis, with a maximum of 
two years between each review. 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Title of Report: Internal Audit Plan 2011-14 
Report to be 
considered by: Governance and Audit Committee 

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2011 

Forward Plan Ref:       
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To outline an Internal Audit Strategy for the next three 
years 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

Review and approve the proposed plan 
 

Reason for decision to be 
taken: 
 

to ensure that adequte assurance is provided that the 
Council's Internal Framework remains robust. 
 

Other options considered: 
 

      
 

Key background 
documentation: 

      

 
The proposals will also help achieve the following Council Plan Theme(s): 
 CPT13 - Value for Money 
 CPT14 - Effective People 
 CPT16 - Excellent Performance Management 

The proposals contained in this report will help to achieve the above Council Plan Priorities 
and Themes by: 
Ensuring that there are robust service delivery procedures in place 
 
Portfolio Member Details 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Keith Chopping - (0118) 983 2057 
E-mail Address: kchopping@westberks.gov.uk 
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 2nd  March 2011 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Ian Priestley 
Job Title: Chief Internal Auditor 
Tel. No.: 01635 519253 
E-mail Address: ipriestley@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 6.

Page 47



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Implications 
 

 
Policy: none 

Financial: none 

Personnel: none 

Legal/Procurement: none 

Property: none 

Risk Management: Internal audit support the Risk Management process by focusing 
on high risk areas and making recommendations to improve 
system weaknesses and reduce levels of risk 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment: 

none required 
 

 
 

Is this item subject to call-in? Yes:   No:   

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box: 

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council  
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position   
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Commission or associated 
Task Groups within preceding six months 

 

Item is Urgent Key Decision  

Page 48



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Executive Summary 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 This report sets out the proposed plan of work for internal audit over the next three 
years. 

1.2 The report outlines the method used to compile the plan, which is based around 
risk. 

2. Proposals 

2.1 The audit plan sets out a range of proposed audits. In addition work carried out in 
the previous year will be followed up. A copy of the audit plan is at appendix B. 

3. Conclusion 

3.1 The work of internal audit is designed to provide the Council with assurance on the 
state of the Council’s internal control framework. The work is also designed to 
highlight and remedy weaknesses identified in the Council’s service delivery 
systems.  

 

Page 49



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline an Audit Strategy for the Council and to set 
out a programme of work for Internal Audit that will provide assurance to the 
Governance and Audit Committee on the operation of the Council’s internal control 
framework and support the Committee’s review of the Annual Governance 
Statement.  

1.2 The report covers the following points: 
 

• Audit objectives and outcomes 
• How audit work is planned to ensure significant local and national issues are 

addressed. 
• Basis for the opinion of the head of audit on the internal control framework 
• Methods of providing and resourcing of the service.  

 
2 Audit Objectives and Outcomes 
 
2.1 The objectives for Internal Audit are set out in the Audit Charter which forms an 

appendix to the Terms of Reference of the Governance and Audit Committee.  This 
is summarised in the definition of Internal Audit, taken from the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit 2006.  The full charter is attached at appendix A 

 
Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and 
objective opinion to the organisation on the control environment, by evaluating its 
effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, 
evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a 
contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources 

 
2.2 In plain English, Internal Audit is there to help Services deliver the Council Plan by 

identifying and helping to mitigate weaknesses in service delivery systems and 
procedures.    

 
2.3 The main outcomes from the work of Internal Audit are: 
 

• Audit reports produced at the conclusion of each audit, for the relevant Head of 
Service and Director. 

• Monitoring reports on progress with implementation of agreed audit 
recommendations  

• An annual assurance report and an interim update report for Management Board 
and Governance and Audit Committee on the outcomes of Internal Audit work 

 
3 Audit Planning 
 
3.1 The work programme for Internal Audit for the period 2011-14 is attached at 

appendix B.  The plan analyses the different areas of Council activity that Internal 
Audit feel require auditing.  The Plan is laid out by, Corporate Audits, then by Head 
of Service and for each audit covers: 

 

Page 50



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

• The key risks that the audit will cover 
• The level of risk associated with the subject, as assessed by Internal Audit 
• The complexity of the audit. 
• The type of audit  
• An initial estimate of the number of days that will be required to complete the audit, 

and the year in which the audit is planned 
 
3.2 The process of putting the plan together is extensive in terms of the documents and 

people who are consulted. The following identifies the key drivers: 
 

• The Council Plan. This is reviewed to ensure that audit resources are used to 
support the delivery of Council objectives.  

• The Council’s risk registers, particularly the Strategic Risk Register. This is used to 
highlight areas where assurance is required for controls that are in place to 
significantly reduce levels of risk to the Council.  

• Results of previous audit, inspection and scrutiny work, by internal teams and 
external agencies, is considered. 

• The views of stakeholders, Heads of Service, Corporate Board, Management Board 
are considered. 

• Plans are made available to the Council’s external auditor to ensure that there is no 
unnecessary duplication of effort. 

 
3.3 The work programme is based on levels of risk. The risk registers are used to 

inform the level of risk where appropriate and this is supplemented by an audit view 
of risk. This takes account of: 

 
• Results of risk self assessments (Strategic and Operational Risk Registers); 
• Complexity/scale of system and processes / volume and value of transactions; 
• Fraud and corruption - eg the risk of fraud or corruption occurring; 
• Inherent risk - eg degree of change/instability/confidentiality of information;  
• Internal Audit knowledge of the control environment based on previous audit work. 

 
4 Audit approach and opinion 
 
4.1 The work of Internal Audit forms the basis of the opinion given by the head of audit 

on the Council’s internal control framework.  The work of Internal Audit is regulated 
by the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government. This sets out 
the standards and methods that should be applied in doing the work. At an 
operational level Internal Audit have a procedure manual that explains in detail how 
work is delivered. In addition a Audit Protocol is published to all Heads of Service 
setting out how the service operates. A copy of this is at Appendix C 

 
4.2 There are a number key elements to the process that ensure the output from audit 

is fit for purpose.  
 

• Consultation takes place at various stages of each audit with the service under 
review (Terms of reference, rough and formal draft and final  reports and action 
plans are all discussed and agreed with the service under review) 

• Audits are followed up to ensure that agreed actions are implemented. (Method and 
approach to follow up work varies depending on the nature of the issues identified 
in the original audit)  

Page 51



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

• All audit work is reviewed before being released. (The review process is ongoing 
during the course of each audit) 

• An annual review of Internal Audit is now carried out by the Governance and Audit 
Committee. 

• The External Auditor comments annually on the work of Internal Audit, the extent to 
which it complies with the Code of Practice and the extent to which the External 
Auditor can rely on the work.  

 
4.3 The work produced by Internal Audit is designed to identify and remedy 

weaknesses in the internal control framework. Weaknesses that are identified are 
categorised according to their severity (fundamental, significant, moderate and 
minor). 

 
4.4 Taken together, the above provides a sound basis for the Chief Internal Auditor to 

provide an annual opinion of the internal control framework of the Council. 
 
5 Service provision and resourcing 
 
5.1 Planned vacancies include one Auditor post. This will help deliver the MVF target 

for the Finance Service. The Plan has been built on the assumption that this post 
will remain vacant for the whole year. 

 
5.2 Resources have been reduced for the section, in order to support the need to 

reduce the Council’s budget. The Chief Internal Auditor now has the support of 6 
FTE’s compared to 8 FTE’s in previous years. Corporate Board take the view that 
this is the minimum level of resource to provide adequate assurance to the Council. 

 
5.3 The impact of the planned vacancies is manageable in terms of levels of risk to the 

Council.   
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Audit Charter 
Appendix B – Audit Plan 
Appendix C – Audit Protocol 
 
Consultees 
 
Local Stakeholders: N/A 

Officers Consulted: Corporate Board 

Trade Union: N/A 
 

Page 52



Appendix A  
 
AUDIT CHARTER 

 
1 Definition and Purpose of Internal Audit 
 
1.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (2006) defined 

Internal Audit 
 

Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective 
opinion to the organisation on the control environment, by evaluating its effectiveness 
in achieving the organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and 
reports on the adequacy of the control environment1 as a contribution to the proper, 
economic, efficient and effective use of resources.  

 
1.2 Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2006, which state in respect of Internal Audit: 
 
1.3 ‘A relevant body shall maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its 

accounting records and its system of internal control in accordance with the proper 
internal audit practices.’ 

 
1.4 The existence of an Internal Audit function does in no way diminish the responsibility of 

management to establish systems of internal control to ensure that activities are 
conducted in an efficient, secure and well ordered manner within the Authority.   

 
2 Responsibility & Objectives 
 
2.1 As an independent appraisal function within the Authority, the objectives of Internal 

Audit are: 
 

• To review, appraise and report on the adequacy of internal controls as a contribution to 
the economic, efficient and effective use of resources. 

• Ascertain the extent of compliance with procedures, policies, regulations and 
legislation. 

• Provide reassurance to management that their agreed policies are being carried out 
effectively 

• Facilitate good practice in managing risks 
• Recommend improvements in control, performance and productivity in achieving 

corporate objectives. 
• Review the value for money processes, best value arrangements, systems and units 

within the Authority. 
• Work in partnership with External Audit 
• Identify fraud as a consequence of its reviews and deter crime. 

 

                                                      
 

Page 53



3 Scope and Accountability 
 
3.1 Internal Audit as a function will remain independent of the Authority’s operational 

activities, and its auditors will undertake no operational duties.  This will allow auditors 
to perform duties in a manner which facilitates impartial and effective professional 
judgements and recommendations.   

 
3.2 The scope of Internal Audit allows for unrestricted coverage of the Authority’s activities 

and access to all staff, records and assets deemed necessary in the course of the 
audit.   

 
3.3 Accountability for the response to advice and recommendations made by Internal Audit 

lies with the management of the Authority.  Management can accept and implement 
advice and recommendations provided or formally reject it.  Internal Audit is not 
responsible for the implementation of recommendations or advice provided. 

 
3.4 Internal Audit sits within the Finance Service and supports the statutory functions of the 

Head of Finance. However, Internal Audit is also accountable to the Governance and 
Audit Committee for the delivery of assurance in relation to the Council’s system of 
internal control   

 
4 Reporting  
 
4.1 All audit assignments will be the subject of a formal report written by the appropriate 

auditor.  The report will include an ‘opinion’ on the adequacy of controls in the area that 
has been audited.   

 
4.2 Every Internal Audit report issued, is subject to a follow up in order to ascertain 

whether actions stated by management in response to the audit report have been 
implemented.  Internal Audit will determine if progress made in response to 
recommendations stated in the issued audit report is satisfactory, or if a further follow 
up is required.   

 
4.3 Internal Audit will prepare half yearly reports for the Governance and Audit Committee 

and give an opinion on the Council’s internal control framework. 
 
4.4 Internal Audit will bring to the attention of the Governance and Audit Committee any 

serious matters of concern that may arise in the course of audit work 
 
5 Resources 
 
5.1 Internal Audit will prepare an Audit Strategy each year that sets out the aims and 

objectives of the service.  
 
5.2 A detailed risk based plan of work will be prepared for approval by the Governance and 

Audit Committee, including the resources required to carry out the work. This will set 
out the key areas / risks that are to be subject to audit.  

 

Page 54



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Au

di
ts

In
co
m
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n 
- s
po
t c
he
ck
s

a)
  T

he
ft/
Fr
au
d

1
Hi
gh

AF
W

20
09
-1
0

20
20

20
60

Ca
pi
ta
l p
la
nn
in
g 
/ p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
/ u
se
 o
f P

M
M

a)
  I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 p
ro
je
ct
 m
an
ag
em

en
t -
 b
ud
ge
ts
 e
xc
ee
de
d/
de
ad
lin
es
 

ex
ce
ed
ed
/o
ut
co
m
e 
do
es
 n
ot
 m
ee
t c
lie
nt
 n
ee
ds
  b
) I
m
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
an
d 

us
ag
e 
of
 P
M
M

4
Hi
gh

SR
20
04
-0
5

20
20

F
NF

I I
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 
wo

rk
a)
 fr
au
d 
by
 e
m
pl
oy
ee
s/
re
sid

en
ts
 

2
Hi
gh

AF
W

20
10
-1
1

30
30

30
90

Te
le
co
m
m
un
ica

tio
ns
 

a)
 In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 u
se
 o
f e
qu
ip
m
en
t/i
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 m
on
ito
rin
g 
of
 p
er
so
na
l 

ca
lls
 re

su
ltin

g 
in
 u
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re
 b
ei
ng
 in
cu
rre

d 
po
ss
ib
ilit
y 
of
 

Fr
au
d/
ab
us
e 
b)
 T
he
re
 is
n'
t a
 c
on
sis

te
nt
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
wh

en
 d
et
er
m
in
in
g 

wh
o 
ca
n 
be
 a
llo
ca
te
d 
te
le
co
m
s 
eq
ui
pm

en
t, 
th
er
ef
or
e 
 a
ss
es
sin

g 
th
e 

3
M
ed
iu
m

AF
W

20
10
-1
1

0

Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t o
f I
CT

 h
ar
dw

ar
e 
an
d 
so
ftw

ar
e

a)
 P
oo
r v
fm
 b
) P

oo
r c
om

pa
ta
bi
lity

 w
ith
 e
xis

tin
g 
sy
st
em

s 
 c
) f
ai
lu
re
 to
 

fo
llo
w 
Co

nt
ra
ct
 R
ul
es
 d
) P

oo
r i
m
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n

4
M
ed
iu
n

SR
No

t A
ud
ite
d

0

to
ta

l
50

70
50

17
0

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Di

re
ct

or
at

e

Tr
av
el
 C
la
im
s

a)
  F

ra
ud
ul
en
t c
la
im
s 
b)
 In
ac
cu
ra
te
 p
ay
m
en
ts
   
  

1
M
ed
iu
m
 

AF
W

20
10
-1
1

10
10

to
ta

l
0

0
10

10

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Di

re
ct

or
 - 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Tr
av
el
 C
la
im
s

a)
  F

ra
ud
ul
en
t c
la
im
s 
b)
 In
ac
cu
ra
te
 p
ay
m
en
ts
   
  

1
M
ed
iu
m
 

AF
W

20
10
-1
1

0

to
ta

l
0

0
0

0

Co
rp

or
at

e 
 D

ire
ct

or
 - 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Tr
av
el
 C
la
im
s

a)
  F

ra
ud
ul
en
t c
la
im
s 
b)
 In
ac
cu
ra
te
 p
ay
m
en
ts
   
  

1
M
ed
iu
m
 

AF
W

20
04
-5

10
10

to
ta

l
10

0
0

10

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Di

re
ct

or
 - 

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
Se

rv
ic

es

Tr
av
el
 C
la
im
s

a)
  F

ra
ud
ul
en
t c
la
im
s 
b)
 In
ac
cu
ra
te
 p
ay
m
en
ts
   
  

1
M
ed
iu
m
 

AF
W

20
10
-1
1

10
10

to
ta

l
0

0
10

10

Pa
ge

 1

Page 55



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 

In
su
ra
nc
e

a)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t o
f u
ni
ns
ur
ed
 lo
ss
es
  b
)  
in
ac
cu
ra
te
 c
la
im
s 

re
co
rd
 fo
r m

an
ag
em

en
t i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
  

2
Hi
gh

SR
20
02
-0
3

15
15

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
/ R

isk
 M
an
ag
em

en
t

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 L
eg
al
 re

qu
ire
m
en
ts
  b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 fr
am

ew
or
k 

fo
r A

G
S 
re
po
rti
ng

3
Hi
gh

SR
20
07
-0
8

 
15

15

He
al
th
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 H
&S

 L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
- l
eg
al
 a
ct
io
n/
pe
na
ltie

s
2

Hi
gh

SR
20
05
-0
6

15
15

W
eb
ris
k 

a)
 P
oo
r u

se
 o
f i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 

2
M
ed
iu
m

SR
20
08
-0
9

0

F
G
en
er
al
 L
ed
ge
r (
m
an
ag
ed
 a
ud
it)

a)
  I
na
cc
ur
at
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
fo
r m

an
ag
em

en
t d
ec
isi
on
s 
 b
)  
Bu

dg
et
s 

ex
ce
ed
ed
  c
)  
Q
ua
lifi
ed
 a
cc
ou
nt
s 

2
M
ed
iu
m

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

10
10

10
30

F
Fi
xe
d 
As

se
t R

eg
ist
er
 (m

an
ag
ed
 a
ud
it)

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 a
cc
ou
nt
in
g 
st
an
da
rd
s 
 b
)  
Q
ua
lifi
ed
 A
cc
ou
nt
s

2
Lo
w

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

10
10

10
30

Bu
dg
et
 M
on
ito
rin
g 

a)
 In
ac
cu
ra
te
 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
b)
 p
oo
r d

ec
isi
on
 m
ak
in
g 

2
Hi
gh

SR
20
07
-0
8

20
20

M
TF

S
a)
  C

ou
nc
il's

 fi
na
nc
ia
l t
ar
ge
ts
 a
re
 n
ot
 re

al
ise

d 
 b
) B

ud
ge
t p
re
ss
ur
es
  c
)  

In
cr
ea
se
s 
in
 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
   
 

4
Hi
gh

SR
20
06
-0
7

15
15

F
Tr
ea
su
ry
 M
an
ag
em

en
t (
m
an
ag
ed
 a
ud
it)

a)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 c
as
hf
lo
w 
de
cis

io
ns
 - 
in
co
m
e 
no
t m

ax
im
ise

d 
 b
)  

Le
gi
sla

tio
n/
In
te
rn
al
 p
ol
ice

s 
no
t c
om

pl
ie
d 
wi
th
  

2
Lo
w

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

10
10

10
30

Ba
nk
 R
ec
on
cil
ia
tio
n 
(c
ov
er
 C
ha
ps
 p
ay
m
en
rts
)

a)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 tr
an
sa
ct
io
ns
 p
ro
ce
ss
ed
 th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
ba
nk
  b
) 

In
ac
cu
ra
te
 y
ea
r e

nd
 a
cc
ou
nt
s 
 c
)  
Q
ua
lifi
ed
 o
pi
ni
on
 fr
om

 E
xt
er
na
l 

Au
di
to
rs

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
10
-1
1

15
15

VA
T

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 R
ev
en
ue
s 
& 
Cu

st
om

s 
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 - 
fin
an
cia

l 
pe
na
ltie

s 
  

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
03
-0
4

15
15

To
ta

l 
45

80
75

20
0

Pa
ge

 2

Page 56



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f H

R Re
cr
ui
tm
en
t (
pr
oc
es
s)

a)
  D

el
ay
s 
in
 a
pp
oi
nt
in
g 
st
af
f -
 d
isr
up
tio
n 
to
 s
er
vic

e 
de
liv
er
y 
 b
)  
No

n 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 e
m
pl
oy
m
en
t l
eg
isl
at
io
n 
  C

) C
RB

 fa
ilu
re
  

2
Hi
gh

SR
20
08
-0
9

0

Ab
se
nc
e 
M
an
ag
em

en
t

a)
   
Co

un
cil
's 
sic

kn
es
s 
po
lic
y 
no
t b
ei
ng
 a
dh
er
ed
 to
  b
)  
In
ac
cu
ra
te
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
fo
r p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

2
Hi
gh

SR
20
08
-0
9

10
10

Co
de
 o
f C

on
du
ct
 / 
HR

 P
ol
ici
es
 &
 P
ro
ce
du
re
s

a)
  S

ta
ff 
no
t b
ei
ng
 m
an
ag
ed
 c
on
sis

te
nt
ly/
to
 th
e 
Co

un
cil
's 
st
an
da
rd
s 

re
qu
ire
d 
st
an
da
rd
s 
 b
) N

ew
 m
an
ag
er
s 
no
t b
ei
ng
 a
wa

re
 o
f t
he
 re

qu
ire
d 

st
an
da
rd
s 
an
d 
re
la
te
d 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es

1
M
ed
iu
m

SR
20
07
-0
8

15
15

Co
rp
or
at
e 
Tr
ai
ni
ng

a)
 fa
ilu
re
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 s
ta
ff 
/in
fo
rm

 s
ta
ff 
of
 c
or
po
ra
te
 p
ol
ici
es
 a
nd
 

pr
oc
ed
ur
es

1
M
ed
iu
m

SR
20
03
-0
4

0

To
ta

l 
10

0
15

25

Pa
ge

 3

Page 57



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f L

eg
al

 a
nd

 E
le

ct
or

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Re
gi
st
ra
rs
 S
er
vic

e 
a)
  I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 b
ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
b)
  I
ns
uf
fic
ie
nt
 c
on
tro

l o
f i
nc
om

e,
  c
)  

In
su
ffi
cie

nt
 c
on
tro

l o
f a
ss
et
s,
 d
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

Le
ga
l S

er
vic

es
a)
  I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 b
ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l
2

Hi
gh
 

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

El
ec
to
ra
l S

er
vic

es
a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
nt
rie
s 
on
 re

gi
st
er
, 

c)
  I
nc
or
re
ct
 p
ay
m
en
ts
/e
xp
en
di
tu
re
/c
ha
rg
es

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
05
-0
6

10
10

La
nd
 C
ha
rg
es

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
b)
  I
nc
om

e 
co
lle
ct
io
n 
no
t e
ffe
ct
ive

 
2

Lo
w

O
R

20
07
-0
8

0

Co
nt
ra
ct
 le
tti
ng

a)
 N
on
-c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 C
on
tra

ct
 ru

le
s 
of
 P
ro
ce
du
re
  b
)  
No

n 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 E
U 
le
gi
sla

tio
n 
 c
)  
Co

rru
pt
io
n 

3
M
ed
iu
m

AC
W

20
04
-0
5

15
15

30

Co
nt
ra
ct
 m
on
ito
rin
g

a)
  N

on
-c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 C
on
tra

ct
 ru

le
s 
of
 P
ro
ce
du
re
  b
) C

on
tra

ct
 s
pe
c 

no
t m

et
  c
) C

on
tra

ct
 c
os
ts
 e
xc
ee
de
d

3
M
ed
iu
m

SR
20
07
-0
8

 
20

20

to
ta

l
0

15
45

60

Pa
ge

 4

Page 58



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 

Se
rv
ice

 P
la
nn
in
g/
ta
rg
et
s 
an
d 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t

Se
rv
ice

 D
el
ive

ry
 / 
in
te
rv
en
tio
n 
/ l
eg
al
 o
lb
lig
at
io
ns
 / 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

in
di
ca
to
rs
 / 
lin
ka
ge
s 
to
 T
im
el
or
d

4
M
ed
iu
m

SR
No

t a
ud
ite
d

25
25

Da
ta
 Q
ua
lity

a)
 P
ro
ce
ss
es
 fo
r r
ec
or
di
ng
/m
on
ito
rin
ge
xt
er
na
lly
 s
et
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

in
di
ca
to
rs
 a
re
 n
ot
 ro

bu
st
 re

su
ltin

g 
in
 a
cc
ur
at
e 
da
ta
 b
ei
ng
 re

po
rte

d/
no
n-

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 e
xt
er
na
l r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts

4
Hi
gh

No
t a
ud
ite
d

0

G
ra
nt
s 
(in
c 
Ec

on
om

ic 
De

ve
lo
pm

en
t)

Re
ce
ss
io
n 
/ D

ow
nt
ur
n 
in
 e
co
no
m
y

2
Lo
w

SR
20
06
-0
7

15
15

M
em

be
rs
 e
xp
en
se
s

a)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 p
ay
m
en
ts
, b
)  
O
ve
r p

ay
m
en
ts
 o
n 
bu
dg
et
s,
  c
)  
No

n 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n/
po
lic
ie
s

1
Hi
gh

O
R

20
09
-1
0

0

Co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
/ C

od
e 
of
 C
on
du
ct

a)
  I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 p
ol
ice

s 
an
d 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
in
 p
la
ce
,  
b)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 

po
lic
ie
s/
pr
oc
es
se
s

3
M
ed
iu
m

SR
No

t a
ud
ite
d

0

Da
ta
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
/ F

re
ed
om

 o
f I
nf
or
m
at
io
n

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
 b
)  
No

 S
ta
nd
ar
d 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 fo
r 

de
al
in
g 
wi
th
 re

qu
es
ts
  c
)  
Ad

eq
ua
te
 re

co
rd
s 
no
t m

ai
nt
ai
ne
d 
of
 

re
qu
es
ts
/re

sp
on
se
s

3
Hi
gh

SR
20
06
-0
7

20
20

Sc
ru
tin
y

a)
 In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 S
cr
ut
in
y

2
M
ed
iu
m
 

SR
No

t a
ud
ite
d

0

In
tra

ne
t/I
nt
er
ne
t/C

om
m
un
ica

tio
n/
Pu

bl
ica

tio
ns

a)
 In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 a
nd
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s,
 b
) I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

pu
bl
ish

ed
 - 
ve
rs
io
n 
co
nt
ro
l.

2
M
ed
iu
m

SR
No

t a
ud
ite
d

15
15

Ci
vil
 C
on
tin
ge
nc
ie
s

a)
  C

on
tin
ge
nc
y 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 n
ot
 in
 p
la
ce
/n
ot
 e
ffe
ct
ive

 - 
im
pa
ct
 o
n 

ab
ilit
y 
to
 p
ro
vid

e 
se
rv
ice

s 
b)
  L
ac
k 
of
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n

2
M
ed
iu
m

SR
20
03
-0
4

15
15

to
ta

l
15

60
15

90

Pa
ge

 5

Page 59



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f B

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 E

xc
he

qu
er

 

F
Pa

yr
ol
l /
 P
AY

E 
(m

an
ag
ed
 A
ud
it)

a)
 G
ho
st
 e
m
pl
oy
ee
s 
se
t u
p 
 b
) I
na
cc
ur
at
e 
pa
ym

en
ts
 m
ad
e 
 c
) 

In
ac
cu
ra
te
 d
ed
uc
tio
ns
 m
ad
e

3
Hi
gh

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

15
15

15
45

F
Ac

co
un
ts
 P
ay
ab
le
 (m

an
ag
ed
 a
ud
it)

a)
 In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
/fr
au
du
le
nt
 p
ay
m
en
ts
  b
)  
bu
dg
et
s 
ex
ce
ed
ed
  

2
Hi
gh

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

15
15

15
45

F
Ac

co
un
ts
 R
ec
ei
va
bl
e 
(m

an
ag
ed
 a
ud
it)

a)
  C

ou
nc
il's

 c
as
hf
lo
w 
af
fe
ct
ed
  b
)  
In
co
m
e 
no
t m

ax
im
ise

d 
   
 

2
Hi
gh

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

15
15

15
45

Ca
r L

oa
ns
 &
 C
ar
 L
ea
sin

g
a)
  I
na
cc
ur
at
e 
pa
yr
ol
l d
ed
uc
tio
ns
 b
)  
No

n 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 In
la
nd
 

Re
ve
nu
e 
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
   
 

2
Lo
w

O
R

pr
e 
20
01

15
 

15

Ca
sh
 O
ffi
ce

a)
  I
na
cc
ur
at
e 
pr
oc
es
sin

g 
of
 in
co
m
e 
- a

ffe
ct
in
g 
ca
sh
 fl
ow

 d
ec
isi
on
s 
b)
 

Fr
au
d/
th
ef
t  
c)
 A
cc
ou
nt
s 
co
ul
d 
be
 q
ua
lifi
ed
   

2
M
ed
iu
m

AF
W

20
06
-0
7

10
10

F
Na

tio
na
l N

on
-d
om

es
tic
 R
at
es
 (m

an
ag
ed
 a
ud
it)

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
 b
)  
In
ac
cu
ra
te
 c
al
cu
la
tio
n 
of
 

co
nt
rib
ut
io
n 
to
 p
oo
l  
c)
 Q
ua
lifi
ed
 a
cc
ou
nt
s 

3
Hi
gh

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

15
15

15
45

F
Ho

us
in
g 
Be

ne
fit
s 
(m

an
ag
ed
 a
ud
it)

a)
 N
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
 b
) I
na
cc
ur
at
e/
in
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 

pa
ym

en
ts
 m
ad
e 
 c
)  
Ac

co
un
ts
 q
ua
lifi
ed

3
Hi
gh

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

15
15

15
45

F
Co

un
cil
 T
ax
 (m

an
ag
ed
 a
ud
it)

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
 b
)  
In
co
m
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n 
no
t m

ax
im
ise

d 
c)
  A

cc
ou
nt
s 
qu
al
ifie

d 
3

Hi
gh

KF
S

20
10
-1
1

15
15

15
45

To
ta

l
90

10
5

10
0

29
5

Pa
ge

 6

Page 60



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f I

.T
. 

I.T
. S

tra
te
gy

a)
  D

oe
s 
no
t m

ee
t c
ha
ng
in
g 
ne
ed
s 
of
 th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
 b
)  
Pr
og
re
ss
 n
ot
 

m
ea
su
re
d/
m
on
ito
re
d 
- o

bj
ec
tiv
es
 n
ot
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 

3
lo
w

SR
20
07
-0
8

0

So
ftw

ar
e 
lic
en
se
s

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
(s
of
tw
ar
e 
lic
en
se
s)
  

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
03
-0
4

0

Ch
an
ge
 c
on
tro

l M
an
ag
em

en
t

a)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 c
ha
ng
es
  b
)  
Ch

an
ge
s 
do
 n
ot
 m
ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 o
f u
se
rs
  

c)
  C

ha
ng
es
 n
ot
 o
pe
ra
tio
na
lly
 e
ffe
ct
ive

 
3

M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
05
-0
6

15
15

Pr
oj
ec
t M

an
ag
em

en
t (
IT
 in
ve
st
m
en
t)

a)
  S

ys
te
m
s 
do
 n
ot
 m
ee
t b
us
in
es
s/
us
er
 n
ee
ds
  b
)  
Es

ca
la
tio
n 
of
 

co
st
s/
tim

e 
to
 im

pl
em

en
t 

3
Hi
gh

SR
20
06
-0
7

20
20

Po
st
 Im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
Re

vie
ws

 (I
T 
in
ve
st
m
en
t)

a)
  S

ys
te
m
s 
do
 n
ot
 m
ee
t b
us
in
es
s/
us
er
 n
ee
ds
  b
)  
Es

ca
la
tio
n 
of
 

co
st
s/
tim

e 
to
 re

so
lve

 s
ys
te
m
 is
su
es
 

3
Hi
gh

SR
20
04
-0
5

0

En
su
re
 c
on
tin
uo
us
 s
er
vic

e 
(D
isa

st
er
 R
ec
ov
er
y 

fo
r I
.T
. S

er
vic

e)
a)
  C

on
tin
ge
nc
y 
pl
an
 n
ot
 in
 p
la
ce
/n
ot
 e
ffe
ct
ive

 - 
se
rv
ice

 d
el
ive

ry
 a
ffe
ct
ed

3
Hi
gh

SR
20
02
-0
3

15
15

Co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 C
oC

o
a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 G
ov
er
nm

en
t C

on
ne
ct
 re

qu
ire
m
en
ts
  

4
Lo
w

SR
20
10
-1
1

0

En
su
re
 s
ys
te
m
s 
se
cu
rit
y

a)
  U

na
ut
ho
ris
ed
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 d
at
a 
- d

at
a 
co
ul
d 
be
 

am
en
de
d/
de
st
ro
ye
d/
se
ns
itiv

e 
da
ta
 m
ad
e 
pu
bl
ic

3
Hi
gh
 

SR
20
08
-0
9

20
20

M
an
ag
e 
pr
ob
le
m
s 
an
d 
in
cid

en
ts
 (h

el
p 
de
sk
)

a)
  I
nt
er
ru
pt
io
ns
 to
 s
er
vic

e 
de
liv
er
y 
 b
) S

ta
ff 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 a
dv
er
se
ly 

af
fe
ct
ed

3
Hi
gh

O
R

20
04
-0
5

15
15

M
an
ag
e 
da
ta
 (F

ile
 c
on
tro

ls)
a)
  I
na
cc
ur
at
e/
lo
st
 d
at
a

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
04
-0
5

0
ED

I
a)
  I
na
cc
ur
at
e/
in
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
le
ct
ro
ni
c 
tra

ns
ac
tio
ns

3
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

0

Pr
in
t U

ni
t

a)
  I
ne
ffi
cie

nt
 o
pe
ra
tio
ns
  b
)  
De

liv
er
y 
ta
rg
et
s 
no
t m

et
 

2
Lo
w

O
R

Pr
e 
20
01

15
15

Bu
sin

es
s 
Co

nt
in
ui
ty
 P
la
nn
in
g

a)
Fl
u 
/ f
ire
 / 
 fl
oo
d 
/ t
er
ro
ris
m
 / 
se
rv
ice

 d
el
ive

ry
3

Hi
gh

SR
20
07
-0
8

20
20

I.T
. A

ss
et
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

a)
  L
os
s 
of
 I.
T 
as
se
ts
 - 
 in
cr
ea
se
d 
co
st
 o
n 
re
pl
ac
em

en
t e
qu
ip
m
en
t

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
07
-0
8

15
15

to
ta

l
35

45
55

13
5

Pa
ge

 7

Page 61



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f S

pe
ci

al
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

 

De
ne
fie
ld
 

a)
  P

oo
r g

ov
er
na
nc
e 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
  b
)  
Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t r
ul
es
 n
ot
 a
dh
er
ed
 

to
 c
) D

el
ay
s 
d)
  P

oo
r f
in
an
cia

l c
on
tro

l
4

Hi
gh

SR
no
t a
ud
ite
d

0

Br
oo
kf
ie
ld
s

a)
  P

oo
r g

ov
er
na
nc
e 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
  b
)  
Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t r
ul
es
 n
ot
 a
dh
er
ed
 

to
 c
) D

el
ay
s 
d)
  P

oo
r f
in
an
cia

l c
on
tro

l
4

Hi
gh

SR
no
t a
ud
ite
d

0

Lo
nd
on
 R
d 

a)
  P

oo
r g

ov
er
na
nc
e 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
  b
)  
Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t r
ul
es
 n
ot
 a
dh
er
ed
 

to
 c
) D

el
ay
s 
d)
  P

oo
r f
in
an
cia

l c
on
tro

l
4

Hi
gh

SR
no
t a
ud
ite
d

0

to
ta

l
0

0
0

0

Pa
ge

 8

Page 62



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Ag
en
cy
 S
ta
ff

a)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 p
eo
pl
e 
co
ul
d 
be
 a
pp
oi
nt
ed
 - 
ris
k 
to
 c
lie
nt
 b
)  
Bu

dg
et
s 

co
ul
d 
be
 e
xc
ee
de
d 
  c
)  
St
an
da
rd
s 
of
 s
er
vic

e 
re
qu
ire
d 
no
t m

et
 

2
Hi
gh

O
R

20
09
-1
0

15
15

As
se
ss
m
en
t o
f N

ee
ds
/P
ur
ch
as
e 
of
 C
ar
e 
- 

(M
H/
LD

)
a)
  L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 c
ar
e 
pa
ck
ag
es
  c
) 

Bu
dg
et
s 
co
ul
d 
be
 o
ve
rs
pe
nt
 

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
08
-9

0

As
se
ss
m
en
t/P

ur
ch
as
e 
of
 C
ar
e 
- R

es
pi
te

a)
  L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 c
ar
e 
pa
ck
ag
es
  c
) 

Bu
dg
et
s 
co
ul
d 
be
 o
ve
rs
pe
nt
 

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

15
15

Da
y 
ce
nt
re
s 
(4
)

Es
ta
bl
ish

m
en
t r
ev
ie
ws

 - 
ke
y 
ris
ks
 - 
bu
dg
et
ar
y 
co
nt
ro
l/a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
ne
ss
 o
f 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re

1
Lo
w

O
R

20
06
-0
7

0

Ca
re
rs
 g
ra
nt

a)
 B
ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l b
) e

ffe
ct
ive

ne
ss
 o
f a
rra

ng
em

en
t n
ot
 m
on
ito
re
d

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
09
-1
0

0

Di
re
ct
 P
ay
m
en
ts

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
 b
) I
na
cc
ur
at
e 
pa
ym

en
ts
 c
)  

In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 u
se
 o
f b
an
k 
ac
co
un
t  
d)
 C
lie
nt
s 
ne
ed
s 
no
t m

et
  

2
Hi
gh

O
R

20
10
-1
1

15
20

35

Re
sid

en
tia
l H

om
es
 - 
El
de
rly
 (4

)
Es

ta
bl
ish

m
en
t r
ev
ie
w 
- k
ey
 ri
sk
s 
- b

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l/a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
ne
ss
 o
f 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re

1
Lo
w

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

As
se
ss
m
en
t o
f n
ee
ds
/P
ur
ch
as
e 
of
 c
ar
e 
- 

Ho
m
e 
Ca

re
a)
  L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 c
ar
e 
pa
ck
ag
es
  c
) 

Bu
dg
et
s 
co
ul
d 
be
 o
ve
rs
pe
nt
 

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
06
-0
7

20
20

As
se
ss
m
en
t/P

ur
ch
as
e 
of
 C
ar
e 
- R

es
id
en
tia
l

a)
  L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 c
ar
e 
pa
ck
ag
es
  c
) 

Bu
dg
et
s 
co
ul
d 
be
 o
ve
rs
pe
nt
 

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
01
-0
2

15
15

O
/T
 - 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t -
 p
oo
le
d 
bu
dg
et

a)
  I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 g
ov
er
na
nc
e/
co
m
m
un
ica

tio
n 
be
tw
ee
n 
pa
rti
es
  b
)  

Ef
fe
ct
ive

ne
ss
 o
f  
ar
ra
ng
em

en
t n
ot
 m
on
ito
re
d 
- o

bj
ec
tiv
es
 n
ot
 

ac
hi
ev
ed
/b
ud
ge
ts
 e
xc
ee
de
d 

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

15
15

Co
m
m
un
ity
 C
ar
e 
Se

rv
ice

 T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 

Pr
og
ra
m
m
e:
- R

AI
SE

/P
er
so
na
l B

ud
ge
ts
 

a)
  L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 c
ar
e 
pa
ck
ag
es
  c
) 

Bu
dg
et
s 
co
ul
d 
be
 o
ve
rs
pe
nt
 

4
Hi
gh

AD
V

20
08
-0
9

15
15

De
m
og
ra
ph
y 
(im

pa
ct
 o
f f
re
e 
ho
m
e 
ca
re
) 

a)
 P
oo
r m

ed
iu
m
 te
rm

 p
la
nn
in
g 
b)
 b
ud
ge
t p
re
ss
ur
es
 c
) s
er
vic

e 
cu
ts

3
Hi
gh

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

20
20

to
ta

l
60

55
35

15
0

Pa
ge

 9

Page 63



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

Fa
ire
r C

ha
rg
in
g 

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n/
Co

un
cil
's 
po
lic
y 
 b
) I
na
cc
ur
at
e 

ch
ar
ge
s 
ca
lcu

la
te
d 
c)
  I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 in
co
m
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n/
re
co
ve
ry
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s 
  

3
Hi
gh

O
R

20
08
-0
9

15
15

Re
sid

en
ts
 P
ro
pe
rty
 (R

ec
ei
ve
rs
hi
p)

a)
  M

isa
pp
ro
pr
ia
tio
n 
of
 c
lie
nt
 p
ro
pe
rty
  b
)  
In
ac
cu
ra
te
 re

co
rd
s 
of
 

le
ve
l/t
yp
e 
of
 p
ro
pe
rty
 h
el
d 
c)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n

2
Hi
gh

O
R

20
07
-0
8

15
15

Re
sid

en
ts
 P
ro
pe
rty
 - 
(A
pp
oi
nt
ee
sh
ip
)

a)
  M

isa
pp
ro
pr
ia
tio
n 
of
 c
lie
nt
 p
ro
pe
rty
  b
)  
In
ac
cu
ra
te
 re

co
rd
s 
of
 

le
ve
l/t
yp
e 
of
 p
ro
pe
rty
 h
el
d 
c)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
01
-0
2

10
10

Co
nt
ra
ct
 L
et
tin
g/
M
an
ag
em

en
t (
Ca

re
)

a)
  V

al
ue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 n
ot
 o
bt
ai
ne
d 
wh

en
 c
ho
os
in
g 
ex
te
rn
al
 p
ro
vid

er
s 
b)
 

Ca
re
 p
ro
vis

io
n 
no
t f
or
m
al
ise

d/
no
t m

on
ito
re
d 
- e

sc
al
at
io
n 
of
 c
os
ts
/ c
ar
e 

st
an
da
rd
s 
no
t m

et
  b
)  
Se

rv
ice

 u
na
wa

re
 o
f n
um

be
r/v
al
ue
 o
f c
on
tra

ct
s

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
01
-0
2

20
20

40

Co
m
m
on
 H
ou
sin

g 
Re

gi
st
er
 / 
Ad

vic
e

a)
  L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
)  
Re

gi
st
er
 n
ot
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
ly 

ad
m
in
ist
er
ed
 

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
09
-1
0

0

Ho
m
el
es
sn
es
s

a)
  L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
   
b)
  A

cc
om

m
od
at
io
n 
is 
no
t o
bt
ai
ne
d 

pr
om

pt
ly/
co
st
 e
ffe
ct
ive

ly
2

Lo
w

O
R

20
01
-0
2

15
15

Re
no
va
tio
n 
G
ra
nt
s/
Di
sa
bl
ed
 F
ac
ilit
y 
G
ra
nt
s 

a)
  G

ra
nt
s 
no
t a
wa

rd
ed
 in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n/
Co

un
cil
 

pr
oc
ed
ur
es
  b
)  
Re

co
rd
s 
no
t u
p-
to
-d
at
e/
ac
cu
ra
te

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
06
-0
7

15
15

Ho
us
in
g 
St
ra
te
gy

a)
  S

tra
te
gy
 n
ot
 in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
 b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 m
on
ito
rin
g 

of
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
- o

bj
ec
tiv
es
 n
ot
 m
et

3
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

15
15

Su
pp
or
tin
g 
Pe

op
le

a)
 N
on
-c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
 b
)  
Cl
ie
nt
 n
ee
ds
 n
ot
 m
et
/m
on
ito
re
d 
 

c)
  A

dh
er
en
ce
 to
 c
on
tra

ct
 s
ta
nd
ar
d 
no
t r
ev
ie
we

d/
m
on
ito
re
d 
 

4
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
04
-0
5

15
15

To
ta

l
50

55
35

14
0

Pa
ge

 1
0

Page 64



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f C

ul
tu

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

Le
isu

re
 C
en
tre

 M
an
ag
em

en
t

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 c
on
tra

ct
 m
on
ito
rin
g 

an
d 
m
an
ag
em

en
t

3
Hi
gh

AD
V

20
09
-1
0

20
20

M
us
eu
m
s 
(1
)

Re
vie

w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s:
  B

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s 
& 
ca
sh
, 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
.

1
Lo
w

O
R

20
04
-0
5

5
5

Ar
ch
ae
ol
og
y

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
an
d 
go
ve
rn
m
en
t g
ui
de
lin
es
, b
)  

In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 c
om

m
un
ica

tio
n 
be
tw
ee
n 
se
rv
ice

s
2

Lo
w

O
R

20
03
-0
4

10
10

To
ur
ist
 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Ce

nt
re

Re
vie

w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s:
  B

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s 
& 
ca
sh
, 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
.

1
Lo
w

O
R

20
10
-1
1

 
0

Li
br
ar
ie
s 
In
te
rn
et
 u
se

a)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 w
eb
sit
es
 a
cc
es
se
d 
- r
ep
ut
at
io
na
l d
am

ag
e/
Co

un
cil
 

co
ul
d 
be
 fi
ne
d/
co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
m
ad
e 
fro

m
 p
ub
lic
  

3
Lo
w

O
R

20
05
-0
6

0

Li
br
ar
ie
s 
Pu

rc
ha
sin

g/
st
oc
k 
co
nt
ro
l

a)
  B

ud
ge
ts
 o
ve
rs
pe
nt
  b
)  
In
ac
cu
ra
te
 fi
na
nc
ia
l in

fo
rm

at
io
n 
fo
r 

m
an
ag
em

en
t d
ec
isi
on
s 
 c
)  
St
oc
k 
m
ay
 b
e 
m
isa

pp
ro
pr
ia
te
d 
 d
)  

Pu
rc
ha
sin

g 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 a
re
 n
ot
 c
os
t e
ffe
ct
ive

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
08
-0
9

0

Li
br
ar
ie
s 
In
co
m
e

a)
 L
os
s 
of
 s
to
ck
 is
 n
ot
 re

im
bu
rs
ed
, r
es
ul
tin
g 
in
 a
dd
itio

na
l e
xp
en
di
tu
re
 b
)  

In
co
m
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n 
no
t m

ax
im
ise

d 
3

M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

Sh
aw

 H
ou
se

a)
  F

ac
ilit
ie
s' 
us
e/
in
co
m
e 
op
po
rtu

ni
tie
s 
ar
e 
no
t b
ei
ng
 m
ax
im
ise

d 
b)
   
Th

e 
fa
cil
ite
s 
do
 n
ot
 o
ffe
r v
al
ue
 fo
r m

on
ey
  c
)  
Co

st
s 
ar
e 
no
t b
ei
ng
 e
ffe
ct
ive

ly 
co
nt
ro
lle
d

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
08
-0
9

0

to
ta

l
10

5
20

35

Pa
ge

 1
1

Page 65



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f P

ro
pe

rty
 a

nd
 P

ub
lic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Co
m
m
er
cia

l R
en
ts

a)
 N
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
Lo
ss
 o
f i
nc
om

e/
in
cr
ea
se
d 
vo
id
 

pe
rio
ds
, c
) M

isa
pp
ro
pr
ia
tio
n 
of
 le
as
es

3
Hi
gh

O
R

20
08
-0
9

20
20

As
se
t m

an
ag
em

en
t

b)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
) M

is 
m
gt
 o
f a
ss
et
 p
or
tfo
lio

2
M
ed
iu
m

SR
20
05
-0
6

15
15

Bu
ild
in
g 
M
ai
nt
en
an
ce

a)
  I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e,
 b
) N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 

le
gi
sla

tio
n 
(in
te
rn
al
, E

U 
te
nd
er
in
g 
po
lic
ie
s)
 

3
Hi
gh

O
R

20
08
-0
9

20
20

Fa
cil
itie

s 
M
an
ag
em

en
t

a)
  P

oo
rly
 m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d 
fa
cil
itie

s,
 c
om

pr
om

ise
d 
H&

S,
 b
) T

he
ft 
of
 s
to
ck
 

ite
m
s,
 c
) I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 o
ut
 o
f h
ou
rs
 s
er
vic

e
3

M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
03
-0
4

20
 

20

Pr
oj
ec
t M

an
ag
em

en
t

a)
  F

ai
lu
re
 to
 d
el
ive

r m
aj
or
 p
ro
je
ct
s 
on
 b
ud
ge
t, 
tim

el
y 
m
an
ne
r, 
to
 m
ee
t 

ne
ed
 o
f c
lie
nt
s,
 b
) N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n

4
Hi
gh

SR
no
t a
ud
ite
d

20
20

Cl
ea
n 
an
d 
G
re
en
 a
ge
nd
a

a)
 F
ai
lu
re
 to
 d
el
ive

r c
ha
ng
e 
b)
 fa
ilu
re
 to
de
liv
er
 c
os
t s
av
in
gs

4
M
ed
iu
m

SR
no
t a
ud
ite
d

15
15

W
as
te
 M
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 d
isp

os
al
 P
FI
 

a)
 P
oo
r w

as
te
 m
in
im
isa

tio
n 
b)
 L
ow

 le
ve
ls 
of
 R
ec
yc
lin
g

4 
Hi
gh

SR
20
09
-1
0

0

Se
rv
ice

 re
qu
es
ts
 fo
r i
nt
er
ve
nt
io
n

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
 b
)  
Cu

st
om

er
 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
02
-0
3

0

He
al
th
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
 b
)  
Se

rv
ice

 ta
rg
et
s 
no
t a
ch
ie
ve
d 

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
02
-0
3

0

Fo
od
 S
af
et
y 
an
d 
St
an
da
rd
s

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
 b
)  
Se

rv
ice

 ta
rg
et
s 
no
t a
ch
ie
ve
d 

2
Lo
w

20
02
-0
3

Li
ce
ns
in
g 
Re

fo
rm

 In
co
m
e

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
 b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 in
co
m
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n 
  

2
Hi
gh

O
R

20
05
-0
6

15
 

15

Ta
xi 
lic
en
sin

g
a)
 In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 g
ra
nt
in
g 
of
 lic

en
se
s 
 b
) I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 in
co
m
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
08
-0
9

0

Pu
rc
ha
se
/D
isp

os
al
 o
f s
am

pl
es

a)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
 in
cu
rre

d 
 b
)  
No

n 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 

di
sp
os
al
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
02
-0
3

0

Se
rv
ice

 re
qu
es
ts
 fo
r i
nt
er
ve
nt
io
n

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 L
eg
isl
at
io
n 
 b
)  
Cu

st
om

er
 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
02
-0
3

0
IS
O
 9
00
0 
(T
S)

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 q
ua
lity

 s
ta
nd
ar
d 
de
fin
ed
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s 
 

2
Lo
w

AD
V

20
09
-1
0

0

to
ta

l
40

45
40

12
5

Pa
ge

 1
2

Page 66



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f H

ig
hw

ay
s 

an
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 

St
ru
ct
ur
al
 M
ai
nt
en
an
ce
 / 
En

gi
ne
er
in
g

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
  b
) I
ne
ffe
ct
ive

 m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e

3 
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
02
-0
3

15
15

Tr
af
fic
 M
an
ag
em

en
t

a)
  P

ro
je
ct
s/
sc
he
m
es
 ta
rg
et
s 
no
t m

et
, b
) N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 in
te
rn
al
 

po
lic
ie
s,
 p
la
ns

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
04
-0
5

 
15

15

Hi
gh
wa

y 
Te

rm
 C
on
tra

ct
a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 H
&S

 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 c
on
tra

ct
 

m
on
ito
rin
g,
 c
) N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 p
ol
ici
es

2
Hi
gh

O
R

20
04
-0
5

20
20

Ho
m
e 
to
 S
ch
oo
l T
ra
ns
po
rt 
/ C

RB
 c
he
ck
s

a)
  E

m
pl
oy
m
en
t o
f i
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 in
di
vid

ua
ls,
 b
) M

isa
llo
ca
tio
n 
of
 fr
ee
 

tra
ns
po
rt,
 c
) c
on
tra

ct
s 
fo
r t
ra
ns
po
rt

3
Hi
gh

O
R

20
07
-0
8

0

El
ec
tri
ca
l (
in
clu

di
ng
 S
tre

et
 L
ig
ht
in
g)

2
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

15
15

St
re
et
 N
am

in
g/
nu
m
be
rin
g

a)
 In
co
m
e 
no
t m

ax
im
ise

d,
 b
) M

isa
pp
ro
pr
ia
tio
n 
of
 fu
nd
s

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
04
-0
5

0
Co

nc
es
sio

na
ry
 F
ar
es
 / 
Bu

s 
Pa

ss
es

a)
  F

ra
ud
/th
ef
t, 
b)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 re

gu
la
tio
ns

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0
Pa

rk
in
g

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
Lo
ss
 o
f i
nc
om

e 
c)
 F
ra
ud
/th
ef
t

3
Hi
gh

O
R

20
04
-0
5

20
20

Fl
ee
t M

an
ag
em

en
t

a)
 U
se
 o
f v
eh
icl
es
 b
) c
on
tra

ct
s 
fo
r n

on
 fl
ee
t t
ra
ns
po
rt 

Hi
gh

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0
3

to
ta

l
40

30
15

85

Pa
ge

 1
3

Page 67



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

Co
un

try
si

de
 

En
fo
rc
em

en
t

a)
  P

la
nn
in
g 
Le
gi
sla

tio
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
) M

an
ag
em

en
t i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
is 

no
t u
p-
to
-d
at
e/
ac
cu
ra
te
 

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

De
ve
lo
pm

en
t  
 C
on
tro

l
a)
  P

la
nn
in
g 
Le
gi
sla

tio
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
) G

ov
er
nm

en
t t
ar
ge
ts
 a
re
 n
ot
 

m
et
  c
) C

or
ru
pt
io
n 
 d
)  
In
co
m
e 
is 
no
t m

ax
im
ise

d 
   

2
Hi
gh

AF
W

20
06
-0
7

20
20

De
ve
lo
pe
r c
on
tri
bu
tio
ns

a)
  P

la
nn
in
g 
Le
gi
sla

tio
n 
is 
no
t a
dh
er
ed
 to
 b
) C

or
ru
pt
io
n 
 c
)  
In
co
m
e 
is 

no
t m

ax
im
ise

d 
   

4
Hi
gh

AF
W

20
07
-0
8

20
20

Bu
ild
in
g 
Co

nt
ro
l (
IS
O
 9
00
0 
Ac

cr
ed
ita
tio
n)

a)
  B

ui
ld
in
g 
Co

nt
ro
l R

eg
ul
at
io
ns
 a
re
 n
ot
 a
dh
er
ed
 to
  b
) I
nc
om

e 
is 
no
t 

m
ax
im
ise

d
2

hi
gh

O
R

20
09
-1
0

0

Tr
an
sp
or
t S

tra
te
gy

a)
  G

ov
er
nm

en
t r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 a
re
 n
ot
 m
et
  b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 
m
on
ito
rin
g/
m
ea
su
re
m
en
t o
f t
ar
ge
ts
 - 
ob
je
ct
ive

s 
no
t a
ch
ie
ve
d

3
Lo
w

SR
No

t A
ud
ite
d

0

Na
tu
re
 D
isc

ov
er
y 
Ce

nt
re

Es
ta
bl
ish

m
en
t r
ev
ie
w 
- k
ey
 ri
sk
s 
- i
nc
om

e 
no
t m

ax
im
ise

d/
ex
pe
nd
itu
re
 

no
t b
ei
ng
 e
ffe
ct
ive

ly 
m
an
ag
ed

1 
Lo
w

O
R

20
05
-0
6

6
6

G
ro
un
ds
 M
ai
nt
en
an
ce
 C
on
.

a)
  C

on
tra

ct
 s
pe
cif
ica

tio
n 
is 
no
t m

et
  b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
/in
ac
cu
ra
te
 

pa
ym

en
ts
 c
ou
ld
 b
e 
m
ad
e

2 
Lo
w

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

to
ta

l
20

20
6

46

Pa
ge

 1
4

Page 68



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

Ed
uc
at
io
n 
Ps

yc
ho
lo
gi
st
 S
er
vic

e
a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
/in
su
ffi
cie

nt
 

as
se
ss
m
en
ts
 o
f n
ee
d 
un
de
rta

ke
n/
pr
od
uc
ed
.

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

10
10

Se
co
nd
ar
y 
Sc

ho
ol
s 
(1
0)

Re
vie

w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s 
- b

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
in
co
m
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n,
 c
on
tro

l o
f 

as
se
ts
, s
ch
oo
l g
ov
er
na
nc
e

2
S

22
16

16
54

Pr
im
ar
y 
Sc

ho
ol
s 
(6
8)

Re
vie

w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s 
- b

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
in
co
m
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n,
 c
on
tro

l o
f 

as
se
ts
, s
ch
oo
l g
ov
er
na
nc
e

1
S

12
5

10
0

10
0

32
5

Nu
rs
er
y 
Sc

ho
ol
s 
(2
)

Re
vie

w 
ke
y 
ris
ks
:  
Co

m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 a
cc
ur
at
e 
co
m
pl
et
io
n 
of
 

gr
an
t c
la
im
s

1
S

0
0

0
0

Sp
ec
ia
l S

ch
oo
ls 
(2
)

Re
vie

w 
ke
y 
ris
ks
:  
Co

m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s,
 

1
S

0
0

0
0

Fo
rm

ul
a 
fu
nd
in
g 
/ D

SG
a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 b
ud
ge
t b
ui
ld
s 

2
Hi
gh

O
R

20
09
-1
0

0

PL
AS

C 
(8
0 
sc
ho
ol
s)

a)
  S

ub
m
iss

io
n 
of
 in
co
rre

ct
 re

tu
rn
s,
 b
) I
na
cc
ur
at
e 
fu
nd
in
g 

1
Hi
gh

S
20
05
-0
6

10
10

Fa
m
ily
 S
up
po
rt 
Pa

ck
ag
es
 fo
r D

isa
bl
ed
 

Ch
ild
re
n 
(to

 in
clu

de
 s
ho
rt 
br
ea
ks
)  

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
  b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
ac
ka
ge
s,
 c
)  

O
ve
rs
pe
nd
s 
on
 b
ud
ge
ts

3
Hi
gh

O
R

20
09
-1
0

0

Us
e 
of
 F
am

ily
 S
up
po
rt 
W
or
ke
r F

un
di
ng
 in
 

se
co
nd
ar
y 
sc
ho
ol
s

a)
 M
isu

tils
at
io
n 
of
 d
es
ig
na
te
d 
fu
nd
in
g 
by
 s
ec
on
da
ry
 s
ch
oo
ls

2
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

 
10

10

Sp
ec
ia
l N

ee
ds
  R

ec
ou
pm

en
t

a)
  I
nc
or
re
ct
 p
ay
m
en
ts
/c
ol
le
ct
io
ns
,  
b)
  E

nt
itle

m
en
ts
 n
ot
 

id
en
tif
ie
d/
ob
ta
in
ed
,  
c)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n/
st
an
da
rd
s

2
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

15
15

30

Sc
ho
ol
  a
dm

iss
io
ns
 p
ol
icy

a)
 N
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
Un

su
ita
bl
e 
sc
ho
ol
 o
ffe
rs
, c
) 

In
va
lid
 a
dm

iss
io
ns
 d
at
a

2
Hi
gh

O
R

20
09
-1
0

0

Ho
m
e 
to
 S
ch
oo
l T
ra
ns
po
rt 
En

tit
le
m
en
t

a)
  E

m
pl
oy
m
en
t o
f i
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 in
di
vid

ua
ls,
 b
) M

isa
llo
ca
tio
n 
of
 fr
ee
 

tra
ns
po
rt,
 

2
Lo
w

O
R

20
08
-0
9

0

Ch
ild
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
in
 S
ch
oo
ls

a)
 N
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
Sc

ho
ol
s 
ar
e 
no
t a
de
qu
at
el
y 

su
pp
or
te
d/
tra

in
ed
 b
y 
W
BC

2
Hi
gh

O
R

20
08
-0
9

0

Ce
nt
ra
l A

dm
in
ist
ra
tio
n 
- C

hi
ld
ca
re
 G
ra
nt

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n 
b)
  I
na
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 p
ay
m
en
ts
 a
nd
 

aw
ar
ds
, c
) I
ns
uf
fic
ie
nt
 d
oc
um

en
ta
ry
 e
vid

en
ce

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
04
-0
6

10
10

Nu
rs
er
y 
Pr
ov
isi
on
 - 
ce
nt
ra
l r
ev
ie
w

Re
vie

w 
ke
y 
ris
ks
:  
Co

m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 a
cc
ur
at
e 
co
m
pl
et
io
n 
of
 

gr
an
t c
la
im
s

1
Hi
gh

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

Ex
te
nd
ed
 S
ch
oo
ls 
/ A

fte
r S

ch
oo
ls 
Cl
ub
s

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 g
ov
er
nm

en
t t
ar
ge
ts
/le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
M
isu

se
 o
f 

gr
an
t f
un
ds
, c
) A

ct
ivi
tie
s 
ar
e 
no
t e
ffe
ct
ive

ly 
m
on
ito
re
d

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
07
-0
8

15
15

Sp
ec
ia
l N

ee
ds
 A
ss
es
sm

en
t &

 S
ta
te
m
en
tin
g

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
  b
)  
In
co
rre

ct
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
,  

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

Ho
m
e 
Tu

itio
n

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n/
st
an
da
rd
s,
  b
)  
Se

rv
ice

 d
oe
s 
no
t 

m
ee
t r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 o
f u
se
rs
.

2
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

10
10

Re
so
ur
ce
 U
ni
ts
 (7

)
Re

vie
w 
ke
y 
ris
ks
:  
Co

m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s,
 

1
Hi
gh

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

10
10

Ad
ul
t E

du
ca
tio
n

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
  b
)  
No

n 
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t o
f t
ar
ge
ts
 a
nd
 

st
an
da
rd
s,
 c
) O

ve
rs
pe
nd
s 
on
 b
ud
ge
ts

2
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

 
15

15

Pa
ge

 1
5

Page 69



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

Al
te
rn
at
ive

 C
ur
ric
ul
um

Re
vie

w 
of
 th
e 
Po

rc
h,
 B
ad
ge
rs
 H
ill 
an
d 
Br
id
ew

ay
 P
RU

's
1

Lo
w

O
R

10
10

Re
in
te
gr
at
io
n 
Se

rv
ice

Re
vie

w 
of
 th
e 
Ke

y,
 T
he
 O
ak
s 
an
d 
Ki
ng
fis
he
r P

RU
's

1
Lo
w

O
R

10
10

to
ta

l
18

2
15

1
18

6
51

9

Pa
ge

 1
6

Page 70



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Ca
st
le
ga
te

Re
vie

w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s:
  B

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s 
& 
ca
sh
, 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
.

1
Hi
gh

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

As
se
ss
m
en
t o
f N

ee
d/
Re

vie
w 
pr
oc
es
s

a)
 N
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n/
st
an
da
rd
s,
 b
)  
In
ac
cu
ra
te
 

as
se
ss
m
en
ts
, m

on
ito
rin
g 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 a
nd
 re

fe
rra

ls
3

M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
05
-0
6

20
20

Pu
rc
ha
sin

g 
Ca

re
 - 
Re

sid
en
tia
l

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
  b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
ac
ka
ge
s,
 c
)  

O
ve
rs
pe
nd
s 
on
 b
ud
ge
ts

3
Hi
gh

O
R

20
08
-0
9

15
15

As
se
ss
m
en
t &

 c
ol
le
ct
io
n 
of
 c
on
tri
bu
tio
ns

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
In
co
rre

ct
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
, c
)  

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
02
-0
3

15
15

Fo
st
er
 C
ar
e

a)
 N
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n/
st
an
da
rd
s,
  b
)  
Un

su
ita
bl
e 

pl
ac
em

en
ts
, c
)  
In
co
rre

ct
 p
ay
m
en
ts
 

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
08
-0
9

10
10

Fo
st
er
 C
ar
e 
Re

cr
ui
tm
en
t

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
  b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 tr
ai
ni
ng
/s
tra

te
gi
es
 in
 

pl
ac
e,
 c
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
eo
pl
e 
re
cr
ui
te
d,
 d
)  
In
su
ffi
cie

nt
 s
ta
ffi
ng
 le
ve
ls

2
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

0

Ad
op
tio
n 
- R

ec
ru
itm

en
t, 
Pl
ac
em

en
t a
nd
 

Al
lo
wa

nc
es

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
  b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 tr
ai
ni
ng
/s
tra

te
gi
es
 in
 

pl
ac
e,
 c
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
eo
pl
e 
re
cr
ui
te
d,
 d
)  
In
ac
cu
ra
te
 p
ay
m
en
ts

3
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

0

Ca
re
rs
 G
ra
nt

a)
 B
ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l b
) e

ffe
ct
ive

ne
ss
 o
f a
rra

ng
em

en
t n
ot
 m
on
ito
re
d

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R 

No
t A

ud
ite
d

15
15

Pa
ym

en
t o
f C

ar
er
s

a)
 N
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
) I
nc
or
re
ct
 p
ay
m
en
ts
, c
)  

O
ve
rs
pe
nd
s 
on
 b
ud
ge
t

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
07
-0
8

10
10

Ch
ild
 C
ar
e 
La
wy

er
s

a)
  I
nc
or
re
ct
 s
ub
m
iss

io
n 
of
 c
ha
rg
es
 b
y 
W
B,
 b
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 
co
m
m
un
ica

tio
n 
wi
th
 C
hi
ld
re
n'
s' 
se
rv
ice

s,
  c
)  
Ca

se
s 
wr
on
gl
y 
un
de
rta

ke
n 

by
 W

B,
 d
)  
Re

ad
in
g 
co
st
s 
in
 W

B 
fig
ur
es

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
04
-0
5

10
10

Un
ac
co
m
pa
ni
ed
 C
hi
ld
re
n 
- A

sy
lu
m

a)
 N
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
  b
)  
As

ylu
m
 s
ee
ks
/c
ar
e 
le
av
er
s 
ar
e 

no
t a
de
qu
at
el
y 
su
pp
or
te
d,
 c
) I
na
de
qu
at
e 
fin
an
cia

l c
on
tro

ls 
re
 p
ay
m
en
t 

of
 a
llo
wa

nc
es
/fr
au
d.

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
04
-0
5

15
15

Ag
en
cy
 S
ta
ff

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
eo
pl
e 
re
cr
ui
te
d

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
08
-0
9

10
10

Yo
rk
 H
ou
se
 - 
Fa

m
ily
 R
es
ou
rc
e 
Te

am
Re

vie
w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s:
  B

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s 
& 
ca
sh
, 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
.

1
LO

W
O
R

20
04
-0
5

5
 

5

to
ta

l
20

70
35

12
5

Pa
ge

 1
7

Page 71



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

He
ad

 o
f Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 

Po
ol
ed
 b
ud
ge
t C

hi
ld
 &
 A
do
le
sc
en
t m

en
ta
l 

he
al
th
 (s
ec
tio
n 
37
 c
on
tra

ct
)

a)
 E
ffe
ct
ive

ne
ss
 o
f a
rra

ng
em

en
ts
 &
 m
on
ito
rin
g,
 b
)  
Ac

hi
ev
em

en
t o
f 

ta
rg
et
s 
an
d 
ob
je
ct
ive

s,
 c
)  
In
ef
fe
ct
ive

 c
om

m
un
ica

tio
n 
be
tw
ee
n 
pa
rti
es

3
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

 
15

15

Ch
ild
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
Co

nf
er
en
cin

g 
Pr
oc
es
se
s

a)
 In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts
 in
 p
la
ce
, b
) N

on
 a
dh
er
en
ce
 to
 g
ui
da
nc
e,
 

le
gi
sla

tio
n.

2
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

Ut
ilis

at
io
n 
of
 E
xt
en
de
d 
Sc

ho
ol
s 
Fu

nd
in
g 
in
 

Sc
ho
ol
s

a)
 M
isu

tils
at
io
n 
of
 d
es
ig
na
te
d 
fu
nd
in
g 
by
 s
ec
on
da
ry
 s
ch
oo
ls

2
Lo
w

O
R

No
t a
ud
ite
d

10
10

Sc
ho
ol
 M
ea
ls 
Co

nt
ra
ct

Re
vie

w 
of
 s
ch
oo
ls 
no
t i
n 
th
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
 a
)  
No

n 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 

le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
No

t m
ee
tin
g 
se
rv
ice

 u
se
r r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
, c
)  
Co

nt
ra
ct
 n
ot
 

ef
fe
ct
ive

ly 
m
on
ito
re
d

3
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
07
-0
8

20
20

Yo
ut
h 
Se

rv
ice

s 
(6
)

Re
vie

w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s:
  B

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s 
& 
ca
sh
, 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
.

1
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
10
-1
1

0

Ar
ea
 T
ea
m
s 
(2
 te
am

s 
- Y

ou
th
 S
er
vic

es
) 

Re
vie

w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s:
  B

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s 
& 
ca
sh
, 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
.

1
Lo
w

O
R

0

Ad
ve
nt
ur
e 
Do

lp
hi
n 
& 
O
ut
do
or
 Y
ou
th
 A
ct
ivi
ty

Re
vie

w 
of
 k
ey
 ri
sk
s:
  B

ud
ge
ta
ry
 c
on
tro

l, 
co
nt
ro
l o
f a
ss
et
s 
& 
ca
sh
, 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
.

1
Lo
w

O
R

20
08
-0
9

0

O
ffs
ite
 A
ct
ivi
tie
s

a)
  N

on
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
wi
th
 le
gi
sla

tio
n,
 b
)  
Po

or
 ri
sk
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t c
)  

In
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
ct
ivi
tie
s 
un
de
rta

ke
n

1
M
ed
iu
m

O
R

20
05
-0
6

15
 

15

35
10

15
60

Pa
ge

 1
8

Page 72



In
te
rn
al
  A
u
d
it
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
- 
20
11
-1
4

Ke
y 

ris
ks

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d
Co

m
pl

ex
ity

 (U
si

ng
 a

 
sc

al
e 

of
 1

-4
, w

ith
 1

 
be

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

t 
co

m
pl

ex
)

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ca
te

go
ry

Au
di

t 
Ty

pe
Da

te
 la

st
 

au
di

te
d

20
11

-1
2 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
12

-1
3 

Da
ys

 E
st

20
13

-1
4 

Da
ys

 E
st

TO
TA

L 
Da

ys
 2

01
0-

 
20

13
   

Es
t

O
th

er
 C

ha
rg

ea
bl

e 
w

or
k 

(n
on

 s
er

vi
ce

 
sp

ec
ifi

c)

Pr
ep
ar
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 
au
di
t p
la
n

10
10

10
30

M
on
ito
rin
g 
th
e 
au
di
t p
la
n

15
15

15
45

Li
ai
so
n 
wi
th
 P
or
tfo
lio
 M
em

be
rs

10
10

10
30

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
an
d 
Au

di
t C

om
m
itt
ee
 u
pd
at
es

6
6

6
18

An
nu
al
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
St
at
em

en
t 

5
5

5
15

Au
di
t F

ol
lo
w-
up
s

10
0

10
0

10
0

30
0

Au
di
t A

dv
ice

20
20

20
60

Sc
ho
ol
 a
dv
ice

 
20

20
20

60
Ex

te
rn
al
 P
ro
fe
ss
io
na
l L
ia
iso

n
5

5
5

15

To
ta

l
19

1
19

1
19

1
57

3

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
ie

s
10
0

10
0

10
0

30
0

To
ta
l

10
0

10
0

10
0

30
0

Pl
an

ne
d 

Au
di

t D
ay

s 
to

ta
l

1,
00

3
1,

10
7

1,
05

3
3,

16
3

Pa
ge

 1
9

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C - INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING PROTOCOL April 2011 
 

 Page 1 

1 Purpose and Scope 
 
1.1 This document outlines the way internal audit will initiate, and report on work 

for the Council. This protocol relates only to Council Services, a separate 
protocol exists for Schools.  

 
1.2 In terms of this protocol there are three types of audit work that will involve 

different approaches to reporting. These are: 
 

• Routine planned audits to provide assurance  
• Advisory work carried out at the request of the client 
• Unannounced audits – to check cash accounting on site.  

 
1.3 A set of tables are attached which summarise the key elements of this 

protocol for each of the above.   
 
2 Initiating work 
 
2.1 The following highlights the key stages for commencing Internal Audits  
 
2.2 Terms of reference will be issued for all audits, apart from establishments and 

unannounced audits that will set out the scope of the work to be carried out 
and confirm the reporting arrangements.  

 
2.3 In the case of Establishments a formal memo will be issued to outline the key 

areas that will be covered by the work. 
 
2.4 In the case of unannounced audits the Head of Service will be informed that 

the audit has been carried out immediately after the conclusion of the visit. 
(These audits are expected to take no more than half a day.)  

 
3 Reporting the results of Internal Audit work 
 
3.1 The reporting process planned work has three key stages :- 
 

Rough Draft Report (Memo in the case of unannounced cash audits); 
Draft Report / Memo; 
Final Report / Memo. 
 

3.2 The rough draft will be issued to the Service Manager to check the factual 
accuracy, and to obtain their initial observations.   
 

3.3 The formal draft will be issued once the Service Manager is satisfied with the 
accuracy of the report.  The circulation of the formal draft report will ensure 
that all relevant people have had an opportunity to comment on the content of 
the report, prior to it being finalised.   

 
3.4   We request comments/observations from all recipients, however, we treat the 

relevant Head of Service/Unit Manager as the main client, and as such we 
require the Head of Service to agree to the details, and comment on the 

Page 75



Appendix C - INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING PROTOCOL April 2011 
 

 Page 2 

recommendations, of the report before it is finalised.  Where a 
recommendation is not agreed, we require the Client’s reasoning for this, and 
this detail is included in the action plan (attached to the report) for future 
reference.   

 
3.5 Where, during an audit, a serious problem is discovered which requires 

immediate attention, it may be necessary to issue an interim report. The 
relevant auditor will contact the Head of Service to discuss any such issues 
prior to an interim report being issued. 

 
3.6 Internal Audit reports will normally be issued within 3 weeks of the completion 

of the work. The Terms of Reference for the audit should give an indication of 
the timescales for reporting. 

 
3 Follow Up of Audit Recommendations 
 
3.1 A follow up process is required in order to be able to give 

management/members assurance that the agreed action plans have been 
implemented. A follow will normally be carried out for all audits where 
recommendations have been made 

 
3.2 A follow-up review is carried out roughly six months after the audit report was 

finalised.  The exception to this is where an annual review is required to be 
undertaken in accordance with KPMG’s requirements (usually the key 
financial systems in Benefits and Exchequer and Finance).  The follow-up 
then forms part of the following year’s review. 

  
4  Timescales for receipt of Client Responses to Audit Requests for 

information/Responses to Audit Reports  
 
4.1 This protocol sets out the timeframes by which we require a response from 

the Client, together with the processes to be followed where these 
timeframes are not met. 

 
 Suggestion of Timeframe protocol:- 
 

 Timeframe For 
Receipt of 
Response 
 

Action where no response is 
received 

Rough 
Draft 
Report 

Within 3 weeks of 
receipt (or 
notification of when a 
response will be 
received) 
 

Stage 1 - Reminder issued to the Line 
Manager (Head of Service copied in) 
specifying a response is required 
within two weeks otherwise the 
Corporate Director is to be informed. 
   

 Within two weeks of 
stage 1 

Stage 2  - Corporate Director informed 
of lack of a response (Copied to the 
Line Manager and Head of Service) 
specifying a response is required 

Page 76



Appendix C - INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING PROTOCOL April 2011 
 

 Page 3 

within two weeks otherwise this will be 
reported to the Corporate Board   

 
 Timeframe For 

Receipt of 
Response 
 

Action where no response is 
received 

Draft 
Report 

Within 3 weeks of 
receipt (or notification 
of when a response 
will be received)  

Stage two of the Rough draft will 
apply 

 
 
4.2 These timeframes, together with action to be taken where no response is 

received will be incorporated into the standard letters/memos we issue with 
each report. 

 
4.3 The auditor will use his/her judgement on each case to take into account any 

extenuating circumstances, and will notify the Head of Finance where there 
are issues with non-compliance that needs to be reported to Corporate 
Board. The Head of Finance will raise the matter with the relevant Director.  

 
5 Reporting to the Governance and Audit Committee 
 
 The Chief Internal Auditor will provide the Committee, on a half yearly basis 

with a report that will summarise the results of completed audit and follow up 
audits. In the case of follow up audits that are unsatisfactory a note of the key 
issues will be provided and written update provided by the relevant Head of 
Service.-  

 
5.1 A schedule listing each finalised audit, highlighting the overall opinion.  A 

summary of the key issues will be produced for all weak or very weak 
opinions.  Written comment from Internal Audit will be provided to the 
Committee and a written response / comment / update will be sought from the 
Head of Service. In addition the Head of Service will normally be asked to 
attend the Governance and Audit Committee  to provide an update and 
answer Members questions on the audit. 
 

6. Role of Portfolio Holders in the audit process 
 
6.1 Portfolio Holders are involved in the audit process at their discretion and to 

the extent that they choose.  
 
6.2 Portfolio Holders can choose to vary the extent of their involvement at any 

time. In addition if they wish they can vary their involvement on an audit by 
audit basis, by informing the Chief Internal Auditor.  

 
6.3 The role of the Portfolio Holder in the audit process is to: 
 

Page 77



Appendix C - INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING PROTOCOL April 2011 
 

 Page 4 

• Feed in any issues of concern at the start of the audit so that these can 
be considered by the auditor in scoping the review. 

• Support the relevant Head of Service in considering weaknesses 
identified during the audit and action plans proposed by the auditor at 
the conclusion of the audit 

• Support the Head of Service in implementing agreed action plans 
 

6.4 The lead auditor is responsible to the Chief Internal Auditor for managing the 
audit in compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit.  
Responsibility for the content of the resulting audit report will remain with the 
relevant lead auditor and the Chief Internal Auditor. 

 
6.5 The Head of Finance as s151 Officer has overall responsibility for ensuring 

that the Internal Audit service complies with the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 78



Reporting arrangements         
 

 Page 5 

1 Audit Reviews to provide Assurance 
 
Client Terms of 

reference  
 

Rough Draft Report Formal Draft Report Final Report Follow-up 
details 

S151 Officer (Head 
of Finance) 
 

All cases  Where there are 
fundamental weaknesses in 
the service 
 

All cases All cases   
 

Service / Unit 
Manager  
 

All cases All cases All cases All cases All cases  

Head of Service   
 

All cases  Only where serious issues 
relating to the service, i.e. 
lots of fundamental 
weaknesses or issues of 
concern relating to the 
service manager. Such 
issues would normally be 
raised before the report is 
written 

All cases  
 

All cases All cases  

Corporate Director  
 

All cases   Where there are 
fundamental weaknesses in 
the service  
 

All cases (except for 
schools) 

All cases  

Chief Executive For his 
service 
areas 

 Only where serious issues 
relating to the service, i.e. 
lots of fundamental 
weaknesses or issues of 
concern relating to the 
service manager.  Such 
issues would normally be 
raised before the report is 
written. 

Any report with 
fundamental 
weaknesses 
 

Any report 
with 
fundamental 
weaknesses 
 
 

P
age 79



Reporting arrangements         
 

 Page 6 

Client Terms of 
reference  
 

Rough Draft Report Formal Draft Report Final Report Follow-up 
details 

The Chief Internal Auditor 
will decide on the 
necessity to issue a report 
at this level.   
 

Relevant Portfolio 
Member and the 
Portfolio Member for 
Finance (in all 
cases)  
 
(Include the two 
Councillors that are 
Shadowing the 
Finance Portfolio 
holder) 

All cases  If the Portfolio member for 
the service has expressed 
an interest when the TOR 
have been issued. 

All reports All Cases 

Chief Internal 
Auditor 
 

All cases  All cases 
 

All cases All Cases 

 
 
  

P
age 80



Reporting arrangements         
 

 Page 7 

 
2 Advisory/VFM Reviews 
 
(The approach will be agreed with the Client prior to commencing a review, and to be noted in the terms of reference to provide 
clarity of how the findings are to be reported).  Advisory reviews may arise from the need for advice on key controls in systems 
where the Service concerned is already aware that improvement is needed or where the systems are being changed  by the 
service area, (eg a new ICT system is being implemented). 
 
Client Terms of 

Reference 
 

Rough Draft 
Report 

Formal Draft Report Final Report 

Line Manager 
 

All cases All cases All cases All cases 

Head of Service 
 

All cases  All cases All cases 

Corporate Director 
 

All cases   All cases 

Chief Internal Auditor All cases  Relevant auditor will decide on the necessity 
to issue a report at this level where there are 
serious issues relating to the service, i.e. 
lots of fundamental weaknesses or issues of 
concern relating to the service manager.   
Such issues would normally be raised 
before the report is written. 
 

All cases 

 
Further escalation of the advisory / VFM reviews reporting to the Chief Executive and the relevant portfolio Member will depend 
upon the significance of issues / number of weaknesses identified and will be determined by the relevant auditor. 
Due to the nature of the work an overall opinion will not be given for an advisory/VFM review.  However, these reviews will follow 
the standard follow process for follow-ups (progress categorisation/circulation of findings).   

 
 

P
age 81



Reporting arrangements         
 

 Page 8 

3 Unannounced Audits  
 

Client Terms of 
Reference 
 

Rough Draft 
Memo 

Formal Draft Memo Final Memo 

Line Manager / 
Headteacher  
 

None issued All cases All cases All cases 

Head of Service 
 

None issued  All cases All cases 

Corporate Director 
 

None issued   All cases 

Relevant Portfolio Holder 
and Finance Portfolio 
Holder 
 

None issued   All cases 

Chief Internal Auditor 
 

None issued  All Cases All cases 

 

P
age 82



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Title of Report: Review of Internal Audit 
Report to be 
considered by: 

Governance and Audit Committee 

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2011 

Forward Plan Ref:       
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To carry out a review of the system of internal audit 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To note the review 
 

Reason for decision to be 
taken: 
 

To comply with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 
 

Other options considered: 
 

      
 

Key background 
documentation: 

      

 
The proposals will also help achieve the following Council Plan Theme(s): 

 CPT13 - Value for Money 
 CPT14 - Effective People 
 CPT16 - Excellent Performance Management 

The proposals contained in this report will help to achieve the above Council Plan Priorities 
and Themes by: 
ensuring that the Council has an effective internal audit function in place 
 
Portfolio Member Details 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Keith Chopping - (0118) 983 2057 
E-mail Address: kchopping@westberks.gov.uk 
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 

2 March 2011 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Ian Priestley 
Job Title: Chief Internal Auditor  
Tel. No.: 01635 519253 
E-mail Address: ipriestley@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 7.

Page 83



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Implications 
 

 
Policy: none 

Financial: none 

Personnel: none 

Legal/Procurement: none 

Property: none 

Risk Management: Internal Audit is a key support to the risk management processes 
within the Council.  

Equalities Impact 
Assessment: 

none required 

 
 

Is this item subject to call-in? Yes:   No:   

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box: 

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council  
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position   
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Commission or associated 
Task Groups within preceding six months 

 

Item is Urgent Key Decision  

Page 84



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Executive Summary 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an annual review of the Internal 
Audit Service of the Council. This is a requirement of the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations, and complements the requirement for the Council to 
carry out an annual review of the system of internal control that is also 
a requirement of the Accounts and Audit regulations. 

1.2  The review takes the form of a self assessment of the Internal Audit 
service by the Chief Internal Auditor, which has then been reviewed by 
the Finance and Governance Group. 

1.3 A further source of review is contained in the annual audit letter from 
the Council’s external auditor, presently KPMG. In the last letter, 
relating to 2009-10 audit, KPMG confirmed that in their view Internal 
Audit fully comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government and  that KPMG were able to rely on the results of 
the work carried out by Internal Audit. 

2. Proposals 

2.1 The service is presently meeting the requirements of the CIPFA code 
of practice. However, present levels of staffing are considerably less 
than in previous years. This means that there is very limited resilience 
within the service, so that the loss of further key staff would put the 
delivery of the service at risk.  

2.2 One possible way of mitigating the risk is to look at opportunities for 
sharing resources with other local authorities.  Consequently 
consideration is being given to setting up a shared support 
arrangement across Berkshire.  

3. Conclusion 

3.1 Improving the resilience of the service by looking at opportunities to 
sharing support with other Berkshire Councils should be considered.

Page 85



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow the Governance and Audit  
Committee to consider and comment on the effectiveness of the 
“System of Internal Audit” at the Council.   

1.2 It is intended that the Committee’s comments will feed into, and 
support, the Annual Governance Statement for the Council.  

2. Background 

2.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 required the Council to 
review the effectiveness of its “system of internal audit” on an annual 
basis and feed this into the Annual Governance Statement. This 
requirement caused some confusion among auditors at the time as 
no one understood what a “system of internal audit” was. CIPFA and 
the Audit Commission have produced guidance to explain what was 
intended by the regulation, but this guidance did not really explain the 
regulation. Fortunately the DCLG has now published proposals to 
amend the regulation to delete reference to “system” and simply refer 
to a review of Internal Audit.  This report anticipates the amendment 
and provides a review of Internal Audit and is based on elements of 
the CIPFA guidance on who should carry out the review and what the 
review should cover. 

2.2 The revised regulation requires the result of the review to be 
considered by the Council’s Audit Committee.  CIPFA guidance 
indicates that the review should not be carried out by external audit or 
the head of internal audit, however they are best placed to do such a 
review. Consequently this review has been prepared by the Chief 
Internal Auditor and reviewed by the Finance and Governance Group.  

2.3 The review of Internal Audit is based on an assessment of the extent 
to which internal audit complies with  

  
• the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 

Government (appendix A) 
 

• the CIPFA checklist for effectiveness measures for internal audit 
(appendix B) 

 
3.  Results of the review. 

3.1 The results are summarised in the appendix A. The table highlights the 
key aspects / requirements of the work of internal audit and provides a 

Page 86



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

commentary on the extent to which Internal Audit complies with those 
requirements. No issues have been identified from the review. 

3.2 In addition it is also worth noting the results of the last review of 
Internal Audit by KPMG for their 2009-10 Audit. KPMG confirmed that 
they were able to rely on the work of internal audit and that Internal 
Audit fully complied with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit. 
This was reported to G&A at the September 2010 meeting of the 
Committee.  

4. Resourcing  

4.1 Although the service is presently meeting the requirements of the 
CIPFA code of practice, present levels of staffing are considerably less 
than in previous years, 10 FTE in 1998 when the Council was set up to 
6.5 at present. Corporate Board have determined that the staffing of 
the service can not be safely reduced any further. However, with 
existing resources there is very limited resilience within the service, 
which means that the delivery of the service is could be at risk.  

4.2 Such risks are: 

(1) An inability to provide assurance to the Council 

(2) An inability to respond to irregularities / fraud / corruption.  

(3) Additional external audit fees if KPMG are unable to rely on 
the work of Internal Audit. 

4.3 The s151 Officers across Berkshire are presently discussing the 
possibility of developing sharing arrangements. This issue will be 
pursued over the coming financial year. 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A -  Assessment against the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit   
Appendix B -  Assessment against the CIPFA Code of Practice, 

characteristics of effectiveness 
Consultees 
 
Local Stakeholders: N/A 

Officers Consulted: Corporate Board 

Trade Union: N/A 
 

 

Page 87



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Appendix A 
CIPFA Code of Practice – Standards 
  
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement 

 
Areas for development 

1. Scope of internal 
audit  
Terms of Reference  
 
 
 

Terms of reference for Internal Audit are 
included in the Audit Charter which was 
endorsed by the Governance and Audit 
Committee  

 

 
Scope 
 
 
 

Scope of audit work takes into account risk 
management processes and wider internal 
control issues. 
 
Resource levels reviewed and commented 
on in the annual Internal audit plan.  
 
Corporate Board recently reviewed the 
staffing of internal audit and confirmed that 
it is now at minimum level with.  
0.5 x Chief Internal Auditor 
1 x Audit Manager 
2 x Senior Auditor 
3 x Auditor 
 

 

Responsibilities in 
respect of other 
organisations 
  
 

The terms of reference do identify 
responsibilities in respect of other 
organisations.  
  
 

 

Fraud and corruption 
  
 

Terms of reference define audit 
responsibilities in relation to fraud. This is 
backed up by the Authority’s Anti-Fraud 
Strategy 
 

 

 

Page 88



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement Areas for development 

2. Independence  
 
Organisational 
independence 
  
 

The Audit Charter lays down the 
independence of internal audit. 
 

 
 
 
 

Status of head of 
internal audit 
  
 
 

The Chief Internal Auditor has direct 
access to those charged with governance 
through the  Governance and Audit 
Committee 
 
Reports are made in auditors own names 
to management and to the Audit 
Committee by the Chief Internal Auditor.  
 

 

Independence of 
individual internal 
auditors  
 

No conflict of interest between operational 
responsibilities and audit has been found.  
 
 

 

Declaration of interest 
  
 

All staff are reminded annually of the need 
to declare any interests that may conflict 
with their duties 
 

 

 
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement Areas for development 

3. Ethics 
 
Integrity  
Objectivity  
Competence  
Confidentiality  
 

Staff appraisal system considers these 
issues; no significant points have been 
identified.  
 
Staff are made aware of ethics 
requirements through the CIPFA Code of 
Practice. (reminder issued to all staff  
annually). 

 

 

Page 89



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement Areas for development 

4. Audit Committee  
 
 
Purpose of the Audit 
Committee  
 
 

 
Terms of reference have been formally 
approved and are regularly reviewed. They 
include responsibility for the review of the 
Annual Governance Statement.  
 
Governance & Audit Committee approves 
and monitors audit strategy and plan. 
 

 

Internal audit’s 
relationship with the 
Audit Committee  
 

The Chief Internal Auditor attends the 
meetings of the Governance and Audit 
Committee to report on the outcome of 
internal audit work, identify necessary 
changes to the audit plan, and present an 
annual report and opinion and assurance 
on the internal control framework.  

 

 
 
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement 

 
Areas for development 

5. Relationships  
 
with management 
 

Managers are consulted on the audit plan 
and on the scope of each audit. This is 
reflected in terms of reference for each 
audit. 
 
Responsibilities for managers and internal 
audit are defined in relation to internal 
control, risk management and fraud and 
corruption matters.  
 

 

with other internal 
auditors  
 
 

Regular meetings are held with the Home 
Counties Chief Internal Auditors Group 
and the Berkshire Audit Group  
 

 

with external auditors  
 
 
 

Good working relations established with 
KPMG, including consultation on plan and 
regular meetings.   
 

 

with other regulators 
and inspectors  
 
 

Sharing of information is undertaken with 
other internal review agencies.  
 
There is liaison with external regulators 
when necessary 
 

 

with elected Members  
 

The responsibilities of internal audit staff 
and Members, particularly those of the 

 

Page 90



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Governance and Audit Committee are laid 
out in the Audit Charter, and in the Audit 
Reporting Protocol. 
 

 
 
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement 

 
Areas for development 

6. Staffing, training and continuing professional development (CPD) 

Training needs are 
identified 

The skills and competencies required of 
each post have been determined through 
job descriptions and people specifications.  
 
Actual skills and competencies have been 
assessed and individual training and 
development plans have been agreed 
through the appraisal process and are 
being delivered.   
 
Professional staff are required to complete 
CPD by their respective institutes. 
 
The Auditor posts are on long linked 
grades from D-H. A clear criteria for 
progression has been drawn up to ensure 
training and qualifications match 
advancement. 
 
An Audit Manual has been produced in 
house and this is used to provide guidance 
and ensure consistency of work. 
 

 

 
 
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement 

 
Areas for development 

7. Audit Strategy and Planning 

An effective Audit 
Strategy is in place 

An Audit Strategy accompanies the annual 
audit plan.  The Strategy complies with the 
Code of Practice and has been formally 
endorsed by the Governance and Audit 
Committee as part of the planning process.  
 
The risk-based Audit Plan has been 
prepared in accordance with the Strategy. 
 
The Council’s risk registers have been 
used as the basis of the plan to the extent 
deemed appropriate. This has been 
assessed by the Chief Internal Auditor.  
 

 

Page 91



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

 
The plan has been endorsed by the 
Governance and Audit Committee. 
 

 
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement 

 
Areas for development 

8. Undertaking Audit Work  
 
Planning  
 
 

Terms of reference are prepared and 
agreed with management for each audit 
 

 

Approach  
 
 

A risk-based approach is used and an 
audit opinion is given for every audit.  
 
Issues are discussed with management as 
they arise and at the post audit discussion. 
 

 

Recording and 
Assignments  
 

Standards of working papers are specified 
and checked as part of the file review.   
 
Internal audit use an industry standard 
audit management system (Galileo). 
Reports are produced for management 
information. 
 
Adequate working papers supporting 
conclusions drawn and recommendations 
made are maintained and retained on 
Galileo. 
 
Reports are issued to appropriate 
managers in accordance with the agreed 
reporting protocol. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement 

 
Areas for development 

9. Due professional care  
 
Responsibilities of the 
individual auditor  
 
 

All internal auditors are aware of their 
individual responsibilities for due 
professional care.  
 

 

Page 92



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

 
Responsibilities of the 
Head of Internal Audit  

 
Arrangements are in place to monitor this:  
 
• Chief Internal Auditor  reviews a 
sample of audit files and reports.  
• Appraisal and training.  
 
A whistle-blowing procedure is maintained 
through the Whistle-blowing Policy. 
 
Work is assigned so as to avoid potential 
conflicts of interest, although none have 
arisen to date. 
 

 

 
 
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement 

 
Areas for development 

10. Reporting  
 
Reporting on audit 
work  
 
 

Audit reports give an opinion on risks and 
controls, using approved methodology.  
 
Scope of audit is set out in the audit report. 
 
Recommendations are prioritised 
according to risk. Draft reports are 
discussed with management and action 
plans agreed in response to 
recommendations made  
 
Reports are issued to appropriate 
managers  
 
Assurances are sought from managers on 
delivery of agreed actions. 
 
An escalation procedure has been defined.  
 
Implementation of agreed 
recommendations are followed up 
 

 

Annual reporting  An annual report to support the Annual 
Governance Statement  is presented to the 
Governance & Audit Committee. The 
report includes the opinion on the control 
environment and any qualifications to that 
opinion. The work on which the opinion is 
based is set out in the report.  
 
The report highlights significant issues and 
key themes arising from audit work in the 

 
 
 

Page 93



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

year. 
 
An Interim progress report is  submitted to 
the Governance and Audit Committee.   

 
2006 Code standard  Evidence of Achievement 

 
Areas for development 

11. Performance, quality and effectiveness  
 
Principles of 
performance, quality 
and effectiveness  
 
 

Policies and procedures are defined in an 
audit manual.  The Finance Service Plan 
includes performance indicators, which are 
reported to management  
 

 

Quality assurance of 
audit work  
 
 

Audits are assigned according to the skills 
mix required and there is adequate 
supervision by the Audit Manager or 
Senior Auditor. 
 
 

 

Performance and 
effectiveness of the 
internal audit service 
 

Performance measures are defined in the 
service plan and results reported to 
management 
 
Internal quality reviews are undertaken by 
the Chief Internal Auditor  
 
Post audit questionnaires are issued with 
each final report.  
 
An annual assessment of the work of 
internal audit is undertaken by the external 
auditor (and reported to members in the 
annual audit letter) in terms of the reliance 
the externals can place on the work of 
internal audit. The Audit Commission, and 
now KPMG have always placed full 
reliance on the work of internal audit. 
 

 

 

Page 94



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

Appendix B  
CIPFA Code of Practice - Characteristics of Effectiveness  
 

An effective internal 
audit service:-   

Evidence of achievement  
 

Areas for development 

Understands its 
position in respect to 
the organisation’s 
other sources of 
assurance and plans 
its work accordingly.  

Internal audit identifies other sources of 
assurance and takes these into account 
when preparing the Internal Audit Strategy 
and Plan:- 
• Use of risk registers to inform audit 
planning;  
• Has regular meetings with the 
external auditors 
• Has regular meetings with service 
managers 
• Effective liaison with Risk 
Management  audit reports and risk 
registers are shared  
 

 

Understands the 
whole organisation, its 
needs and objectives.  

The Internal Audit Strategy and plan 
demonstrates how audit work will provide 
assurance in relation to the authority’s 
objectives and risks. 
 
Individual audit assignments identify risks 
to the achievement of those objectives.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Is seen as a catalyst 
for change at the heart 
of the organisation.  

Supportive role of audit for corporate 
developments such as corporate 
governance review, risk management. 
Major new systems implementations 
 
Individual assignments may be catalyst for 
change through the identification of 
improvements in control 
 

 

Adds value and assist 
the organisation in 
achieving its 
objectives.  

Demonstrated through individual audit 
assignments and also corporate work.  
Post audit questionnaires give auditees the 
chance to comment on added value of 
audit. 
 

 

Is involved in service 
improvements and 
projects as they 
develop, working 
across internal and 
external boundaries to 
understand shared 
goals and individual 
obligations.  

Internal audit provides help and advice on 
request and supports specific projects 
identified in plan and on ad hoc basis.   A  
resource is identified in the audit plan for 
general guidance and advice. 
 
Services are asked to inform internal audit 
of any planned changes to systems. 

 

Page 95



 

 

West Berkshire Council Governance and Audit 28 March 2011 

 
An effective internal 
audit service:-   

Evidence of achievement  
 

Areas for development 

Is forward looking – 
knowing where the 
organisation wishes to 
be and aware of the 
national agenda and 
its impact.  

When identifying risks and in formulating 
the plan, changes on the national agenda 
are considered.  The Home Counties Chief 
Internal Auditors Group provides updates 
on national issues.  
 
The audit section maintains awareness of 
new developments in the services it audits 
through meetings, perusal of documents 
etc. 
 
The Internal Audit Strategy is updated 
annually and is based around the Council 
Plan 
   

 

Is innovative and 
challenging –  
shaping the values 
and standards of the 
organisation; providing 
internal inspection and 
validation and 
encouraging service 
managers to take 
ownership of 
processes, systems 
and policy. 

Internal audit has taken an innovative 
approach to its reporting arrangements by 
focusing on risks and helping  managers to 
develop their own responses to the risks. 
The aim of this is to encourage greater 
ownership of the control environment 
amongst managers. 
 
 

 

Ensures the right 
resources are 
available – the skills 
mix, capacity, 
specialisms and 
qualifications/experien
ce requirements all 
change constantly 
 

This is reported to the Audit Committee as 
part of the audit plan.  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 96


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4. International Financial Report Standards - Accounting Policies and Prior Year Comparators (GA2212)
	International Financial Reporting Standards - accounting policies and prior year comparators Appendix A
	International Financial Reporting Standards - accounting policies and prior year comparators Appendix B

	5. Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 2011-12 (GAC1905)
	Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 2011-12 Appendix A

	6. Internal Audit Plan 2011-14 (GAC2268)
	Internal Audit Plan 2011-14 Appendix A
	Internal Audit Plan 2011-14 Appendix B
	Internal Audit Plan 2011-14 Appendix C

	7. Review of Internal Audit (GAC2269)

